
AGENDA 
HANOVER CITY COUNCIL 

JULY 21, 2015 
 
MAYOR 
CHRIS KAUFFMAN 
 
COUNCIL 
JOHN VAJDA 
DOUGLAS HAMMERSENG 
KEN WARPULA 
JIM ZAJICEK 
 
1. Call to Order: 6:00 p.m. 
 
2. Approval of Agenda 
 
3. Consent Agenda Items: 

a. Approve Minutes of July 7, 2015 City Council Meeting (page 4) 
b. Approve Claims as Presented: (page 8) 

 Claims  $  143,043.07 
 Payroll   $    11,865.48 
 P/R taxes & Exp $      3,533.95 
 Other Claims  $      1,262.02 
 Total Claims     $  159,704.52 

 
4. Hanover Youth Ball Update 
 
5. 5th St. Water Extension (page 39) 
 
6. MS4 Proposal Update (page 40) 
 
7. Res No 07-21-15-42 – Approving AEM to Provide Acct. Training/2015 Audit Prep. (page 46) 

 
8. Ordinance Amendments 

a. Public Bathroom Use Ordinance 
b. Restricted Residence Ordinance 
c. Medical Marijuana Facilities 

 
9. 2015 Budget Amendments (page 52) 

 
10. Staff Retention 

 
11. Reduction to One Garbage Hauler in Hanover 
 
12. Overlook Circle Ditch Maintenance (page 58) 
 
13. Crow River Regional Trail (page 59) 
 
14. Reports 

 
15. Adjournment 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

To:  Mayor Kauffman & Members of the Hanover City Council 
 
From:  Brian Hagen, City Administrator 
 
Date:  July 17, 2015 
 
Re:  Review of July 21, 2015 City Council Agenda 
 

 
1. Call to Order: 6:00 p.m. 
 
2. Approval of Agenda 
 
3. Consent Agenda Items: see attached consent agenda packet. 

a. Approve Minutes of July 7, 2015 City Council Meeting (page 4) 
b. Approve Claims as Presented: (page 8) 

 Claims  $  143,043.07 
 Payroll   $    11,865.48 
 P/R taxes & Exp $      3,533.95 
 Other Claims  $      1,262.02 
 Total Claims     $  159,704.52 

 
4. Hanover Youth Ball Update 

Representatives will be present to provide an update on the 2015 youth ball season. 
 
5. 5th St. Water Extension (page 39) 

Justin will be able to answer questions related to the initial cost estimate to extend water service the 
length of 5th St. NE.  I have enclosed the estimate. 
 

6. MS4 Proposal Update (page 40) 
Enclosed is an updated proposal to have WSB & Associates help the City implement the MS4 
permitting requirements.  Changes were made to the proposal because WSB will be able to use 
information already gathered in a previous water quality study the City had completed. 
 

7. Res No 07-21-15-42 – Approving AEM to Provide Acct. Training/2015 Audit Prep. (page 46) 
AEM has revised the proposal for a better understanding.  The proposal is an as needed/pay by the 
hour proposal.  Two AEM employees would be providing the training at separate rates.  AEM did 
provide a proposed training schedule as guidance.  A thing to remember with this proposal, we were 
already planning for the standard audit prep. contract.  This cost was $6,500 for the 2014 audit. 



8. Ordinance Amendments 
a. Public Bathroom Use Ordinance 

Mayor Kauffman has additional information he would like to share, as well as a possible phone 
call from an attorney who is working in implementing similar ordinances in other jurisdictions.  

b. Restricted Residence Ordinance 
Staff is seeking direction on the draft ordinance provided by Attorney Squires prior to the June 
Work Session. 

c. Medical Marijuana Facilities 
Staff is seeking direction on having the Planning Commission consider a change to the Zoning 
Ordinances limiting the land use in Hanover districts to prevent medical marijuana operations. 
 

9. 2015 Budget Amendments (page 52) 
Enclosed is a 2015 budget amendment.  Changes reflect staff predictions on year end expenditures 
and revenue.  Changes are based off the first half actuals, adjustments for staffing changes. 
 

10. Staff Retention 
Council was provided information on salary ranges and benefit packages at the May 19, 2015 
meeting.  Council requested time to review this information before discussing any changes.  Staff 
would like comments from Council on the salary ranges or any personnel policy changes they want 
to consider. 
 

11. Reduction to One Garbage Hauler in Hanover 
A discussion to gauge Council’s interest in reducing the total number of garbage haulers in Hanover 
to one will be held. 

 
12. Overlook Circle Ditch Maintenance (page 58) 

A portion of the ditch on Overlook Circle is in need of maintenance.  This road falls within the 
Pheasant Run development.  This maintenance was planned to be conducted during the pavement 
management process, however, due to changes of events related to the trail projects this pavement 
maintenance has not been completed.  Additionally, the Pheasant Run pavement has not deteriorated 
as quickly as anticipated and therefore may not be the first development to receive a pavement 
management project.  Enclosed is a quote from Burschville Construction to complete ditch 
restoration near the properties of 518 and 528 Overlook Circle.  Additional costs would  turf 
restoration and a flared end for the culvert.  This restoration work would allow more efficient flow 
of stormwater over these properties until a larger ditch restoration project can be completed along 
with the street maintenance project. 

 
13. Crow River Regional Trail (page 59) 

Three Rivers Park District is seeking preliminary feedback from the Council on the plan of 
constructing a Crow River Regional Trail system.  The system would begin in Rockford and extend 
through Dayton to the Mississippi River.  Enclosed is information on the project. 

 
14. Reports 

 
15. Adjournment 



CITY OF HANOVER 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

JULY 7, 2015 – DRAFT MINUTES 
 

 
Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance: 
Mayor Chris Kauffman called the regular meeting of Tuesday, July 7, 2015 to order at 7:00 p.m.  
Present were Mayor Kauffman, Councilors John Vajda, Doug Hammerseng, Ken Warpula, and Jim 
Zajicek.  Also present were City Administrator Brian Hagen, Public Works Supervisor Scott Vogel, 
Accountant/Deputy Clerk Elizabeth Lindrud, and City Attorney Jay Squires.  Guests present included 
Wright County Commissioner Michael Potter, Pat Athmann, Doug Voerding from Wright County 
Journal Press, Scott Wallace and wife, and Brennan Torkelson and wife. 
 
Approval of Agenda: 
MOTION by Warpula to approve the agenda as presented, seconded by Hammerseng  .  Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
Consent Agenda: 
Hagen noted that on the revised agenda provided, the claims were adjusted to reflect payments with a 
due date prior to the next meeting.  The claims total was changed to $129,327.77, which adjusted the 
total claims to $149,375.08. 
Kauffmann asked to discuss item e on the consent agenda, relating to how the City will enforce City 
ordinances on rental properties.  Hagen stated that they would be enforced the same as if it was a home 
owner. 
MOTION by Warpula to approve the consent agenda as amended, seconded by Vajda. 

a. Approve Minutes of June 16, 2015 City Council Work Session Meeting 
b. Approve Minutes of June 25, 2015 City Council Special Meeting 
c. Approve Claims as Presented: 

 Claims  $  129,327.77 
 Payroll   $    12,481.42 
 P/R taxes & Exp $      4,827.66 
 Other Claims  $      3,738.23  
 Total Claims     $  149,375.08 

d. Ordinance 2015-03 – Amending Chapter 9 Related to Garage Door Floor Drains 
e. Ordinance 2015-04 – Amending Chapter 4 Related to Rental Dwelling Licenses 

Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Citizen’s Forum: 
 Wright County Commissioner Michael Potter 
Potter provided an update on changes happening at the county related to a new public works facility.  
This new facility will provide adequate space needs for now and into the future.  The new facility will 
also allow the existing location to be used for other departments as the county continues to grow..  
 
Potter further explained how he continues his efforts to help Hanover find a solution to extend 8th St NE 
from the industrial park to County Road 34 providing a connection at the current stop light.  Potter 
stated he is working with soil and water to get a pre-application meeting to investigate the costs and 
challenges for the 8th Street extension.  The road would go through approximately 2 acres of wetland.  
Hammerseng inquired about the role that Potter would play with the project.  He replied that he would 
not be directly active, Hanover would need to take the lead, but he would help out behind the scenes. 



Potter concluded his update by stating the River Rider dissolution is near complete for Wright County 
Transportation.  This process would take money set aside for the agreement that was in place with River 
Riders and give it to the County to fund public transit.  At this time there is now budget for public 
transit.  Potter believes the money should go towards the new agreement between the cities and 
Trailblazers, additionally, Potter would like the funding to help provide coverage to the townships in 
Wright County. 
 
Unfinished Business: 

11112 12th St NE Storm Water Drainage  
Hagen provided history on a 12th St NE stormwater facility maintenance project that removed sediment 
in the facility.  The City received a quote for $4,480 for the second half of the clean up to remove riprap, 
remove sediment, clean riprap, and re-establish the area.  Hammerseng asked when another clean-up 
would be needed.  Hagen stated facilities of this nature typically need maintenance every 10-15 years.  
Warpula had questions on previous costs; Vogel stated that this quote was higher than the 1st portion of 
the clean-up because it is slightly larger in size.  Hammerseng asked whether Vogel was comfortable 
with the quote and if he would oversee the clean-up.  Vogel replied yes to both. 
MOTION by Hammerseng to hire Squirrels Landscaping for $4,480, seconded by Vajda.  Motion 
carried unanimously.   
 
New Business 
 Variance for 935 Labeaux Ave NE 
Hagan provided history on an existing Conditional Use Permit for the property and Planning 
Commission recommendation.  The homeowners, the Torkelson’s, requested a variance to permit the 
use of an existing outbuilding for an extended home business.  Hammerseng stated that the neighbors, 
previous property owner, and Torkelson’s met to voice concerns/opinions and everyone was agreeable. 
MOTION by Warpula to approve variance for 935 Labeaux Ave NE, seconded by Hammerseng.  
Motion carried unanimously. 
 

Master Subscriber Agreement for MN Court Services Data 
Hagen stated this agreement allows the prosecuting attorney to obtain court data.  Squires stated this 
agreement is a necessity. 
MOTION by Warpula to approve Master Subscriber Agreement, seconded by Zajicek.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
 Amy Biren Six Month Review 
Hagen stated that he had sent out Biren’s 6 month review for Council feedback.  Hagen made some 
adjustments based on feedback received.  Hagen further stated that Biren has been provided the review 
and she agreed with the review.  Hagen explained that according to the employment offer to Biren, this 
review is subject to a 3% wage increase.  Hammerseng asked if after this review will Biren fall within 
the normal annual review timeline, Hagen stated yes. 
MOTION by Warpula to approve Amy Biren’s 6 month review and 3% pay increase, seconded by 
Hammerseng.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 Accounting training and Audit Preparation 
Hagen detailed out the quote from Abdo, Eick, and Meyers LLP for training for Accountant Lindrud and 
2015 Audit Preparation.  The proposal is on an as needed, hourly basis.  Warpula calculated out an 
hourly rate and thought it could be lower.  Kauffmann asked Hagen to negotiate the price lower.   
MOTION by Kauffman to table the resolution, seconded by Warpula.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 



Fire Hall and Fire Truck Repairs 
Hagen provided quotes for the Fire Hall Repair; Cottonwood Construction provided a quote of $4,725 to 
repair the damaged door jam, $3,040 to rework existing red metal areas in front of the fire hall or $8,030 
to replace the metal area with bricks.  There was a 2nd quote to replace the red metal area with bricks 
from Dan Stieman, a local contractor for $2,700.  Fire Chef Malewicki recommended using Cottonwood 
for the door jam and Dan Stieman for the replacement brick, as it was most cost effective.  Kauffmann 
agreed with this course of action. 
 
Hagen stated the Fire Truck repairs would be $3,357.05.  Hagen further explained that Chief Malewicki 
is requesting to repair some existing corrosion on the vehicle totaling $1,945.17.  Warpula explained the 
importance of properly maintaining the trucks to extend their use as long as possible. 
 
Discussion took place as to how the damages occurred.  Warpula explained that the wing door had been 
left open in error and made contact with the door jamb when the truck left for a call.  This was the first 
accident of this type in Warpula’s time with Hanover Fire, but the insurance company said it is common.  
Drug and Alcohol testing is not required for accidents on site, had this occurred on the road or on a call, 
the Sheriff would have been called. 
MOTION by Vajda to move forward with the Fire Hall door jamb repair with Cottonwood Construction 
and the brickwork by Dan Stieman, and to move forward on the repairs to the Fire Truck, seconded by 
Warpula.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 August 4, 2015 Regular Council Meeting Time Change 
Hagen stated that August 4 is the Night to Unite and in the past the meeting had an adjusted start time to 
allow Council visit to neighborhood gatherings. 
 
Vajda mentioned in the past that the meetings still went over and Council wasn’t able to attend, he 
proposed changing the date of the meeting as well. 
MOTION by Vajda to change the date of the August 4th Council Meeting to August 3rd at 7 p.m., 
seconded by Zajicek.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Reports 
Vogel  

• The berm for the seating area to view the tractor pull at the Harvest Festival has been graded out.  
Next will be laying the clay base track and seeding the berm with grass. 

• Exploratory digs on the 10 acres went well, no surprises. 
• Midwest Asphalt to start July 10th on the 107th Ave. and 9th St. pavement projects 
• The Ginseng Lane erosion project funding has been approved and Jim Schendel will be working 

on it shortly.  Staff will be helping on the project as well. 
• 12th Street Pond clean-up start state date is 4-5 weeks out 
• Other pond maintenance was completed at a stormwater facility located on 8th St.  This pond 

maintenance being completed will be implemented to GIS for future tracking ease. 
 
Vajda inquired about insurance for the Tractor pull to City Attorney.  Attorney advised to inquire with 
the tractor pull company to add the Harvest Festival and the City of Hanover as an additional insurer. 
 
Justin 

• County Road 19 trail is paved 
• Concrete apron on driveway was broken and replaced 
• Next week backfill and work on final items will start 



• Crossing and pedestrian ramp will be installed tomorrow 
 
Questions for Justin include how will the roads be striped for the crosswalk and where will they be 
placed.  
 
Mrs. Wallace’s inquired about the possibility of wildflower placement from the Three Rivers Park 
District to increase enjoyment for residents and help attract Monarch butterflies. 
 
Hagen 

• 6 acres soil report came in from WSB.  This report has been passed along to Bradford 
Development. 

• A 2nd developer stopped in City Hall and showed interest in the Senior Housing Development on 
the 6 acres.  Hagen informed the developer that he would keep their contact info in case the 
current plan does not get executed. 

• Will be meeting with a realtor on the Duininck Pit.  Council encourage mentioning the 
reclamation work that is needed yet. 

• Final version of Timesheets were handed out 
• Requested that Council review the newsletter and a check will be needed for postage on 

Thursday or Friday. 
 
Vajda stated that the newsletter will also contain a flyer for the Harvest Festival. 
 
Adjournment: 
MOTION by Warpula to adjourn at 8:09 pm, seconded by Hammerseng.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
 
       APPROVED BY: 
 
 
       __________________________________ 
       Chris Kauffman, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Brian Hagen, City Administrator 
 
 
 



Payments

HANOVER 07/17/15 10:54 AM

Page 1

Current Period: July 2015

$142,811.09Computer Dollar Amt

Batch Name 07/21/15 PAY

Payment Posted

ADVANCED DISPOSAL SERVICES  Refer 1066

Cash Payment $199.40Standard Trash:  6/01/15-6/30/15E 100-41940-384 Refuse/Garbage Disposa

Invoice G2012608 6/30/2015

$199.40TotalTransaction Date 7/13/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

BANKWEST - ROCKFORD  Refer 1115

Cash Payment $8.96Spartan EngineE 313-47000-611 Bond Interest

Invoice 7/16/2015

Cash Payment $1,238.28Spartan EngineE 313-47000-601 Debt Srv Bond Principal

Invoice 7/16/2015

Cash Payment -$61.21TankerE 313-47000-611 Bond Interest

Invoice 7/16/2015

Cash Payment $219.88TankerE 313-47000-601 Debt Srv Bond Principal

Invoice 7/16/2015

$1,405.91TotalTransaction Date 7/16/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

BUFF N GLO  Refer 1048

Cash Payment $40.73Ford TruckE 100-43100-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE

Invoice 94139690496 7/3/2015

$40.73TotalTransaction Date 7/7/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

CARLSON, LINDY  Refer 1106

Cash Payment $200.00Hall Rental July 11, 2015E 100-48205-810 Refunds & Reimburseme

Invoice 7/13/2015

$200.00TotalTransaction Date 7/16/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

CARSON, CLELLAND & SCHREDE  Refer 1045

Cash Payment $79.11May Support/June WorkE 100-41610-304 Legal Fees

Invoice 7/1/2015

$79.11TotalTransaction Date 7/7/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

CENTERPOINT ENERGY  Refer 1050

Cash Payment $19.86Fire DepartmentE 100-42280-383 Gas Utilities

Invoice 7/1/2015

Cash Payment $55.42City HallE 100-41940-383 Gas Utilities

Invoice 7/1/2015

$75.28TotalTransaction Date 7/7/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

CENTURY LINK  Refer 1091

Cash Payment $29.52Service for 6/28-7/27/15E 100-42280-321 Telephone

Invoice 6/28/2015

$29.52TotalTransaction Date 7/15/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

CLASSIC CLEANING COMPANY  Refer 1097

Cash Payment $325.00City Hall July CleaningE 100-41940-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 22436 7/10/2015

Cash Payment $130.00Special Event Cleaning - 2 eventsE 100-41940-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 22436 7/10/2015

Cash Payment $135.00Shelter Cleanings - 3 extraE 100-41940-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 22436 7/10/2015



Payments

HANOVER 07/17/15 10:54 AM

Page 2

Current Period: July 2015

Cash Payment $155.00FD July CleaningE 100-41940-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 22437 7/10/2015

$745.00TotalTransaction Date 7/15/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

COLLABORATIVE PLANNING LLC  Refer 1080

Cash Payment $71.25GreenhouseE 100-41910-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 2015-074 7/15/2015

Cash Payment $142.50PlantenbergE 818-41910-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 2015-077 7/15/2015

Cash Payment $2,446.25General PlanningE 100-41910-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 2015-075 7/15/2015

Cash Payment $522.50TorkelsonE 818-41910-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 2015-076 7/15/2015

Cash Payment $23.75LibertE 818-41910-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 2015-078 7/15/2015

$3,206.25TotalTransaction Date 7/15/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

COMCAST  Refer 1046

Cash Payment $257.26June InternetE 100-41940-321 Telephone

Invoice 6/25/2015

$257.26TotalTransaction Date 7/7/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

COMFORT MATTERS  Refer 1090

Cash Payment $98.00Repsonse & Diagnostic - No coolingE 100-42280-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE

Invoice 12454 6/19/2015

$98.00TotalTransaction Date 7/15/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

CRABTREE COMPANIES, INC.  Refer 1072

Cash Payment $1,334.00Laserfiche Software Renewal 9/30/15 - 9/29/16E 100-41570-207 Computer Supplies

Invoice 133540 7/8/2015

$1,334.00TotalTransaction Date 7/13/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

CUSTOMIZED FIRE RESCUE TRAI  Refer 1081

Cash Payment $375.00Incident Safety OfficerE 100-42240-208 Training and Instruction

Invoice 668 6/26/2015

Cash Payment $375.00Safety AwarenessE 100-42240-208 Training and Instruction

Invoice 669 6/26/2015

Cash Payment $375.00Hazardous Material OperationsE 100-42240-208 Training and Instruction

Invoice 670 6/26/2015

Cash Payment $2,426.004 courses, Warpula, Vrieze, Zimmerman, Diaz, 
Pollock, Waldorf

E 100-42240-208 Training and Instruction

Invoice 668 6/26/2015

$3,551.00TotalTransaction Date 7/15/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

ECM PUBLISHERS, INC.  Refer 1118

Cash Payment $376.05Hanover Historic Bridge Rehab BidE 401-49844-400 Repairs & Maint Cont (G

Invoice 236165 7/9/2015

$376.05TotalTransaction Date 7/16/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

ENVIROTECH SERVICES, INC.  Refer 1057

Cash Payment $3,018.51Calcium Chloride ApplicationE 100-43122-224 Street Maint Materials

Invoice CD201517339 6/22/2015

$3,018.51TotalTransaction Date 7/7/2015 Cash 10100Due 0



Payments

HANOVER 07/17/15 10:54 AM

Page 3

Current Period: July 2015

FEDERATED CO-OPS INC.  Refer 1068

Cash Payment $62.62Tordon RTU 1 QtE 100-45200-400 Repairs & Maint Cont (G

Invoice 0000110309 6/30/2015

$62.62TotalTransaction Date 7/13/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

FINANCE & COMMERCE  Refer 1095

Cash Payment $224.53Hanover Bridge Rehab BidE 401-49844-400 Repairs & Maint Cont (G

Invoice 742272690 7/9/2015

$224.53TotalTransaction Date 7/15/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

FINKEN WATER SOLUTIONS  Refer 1092

Cash Payment $41.45Cook & Cold Rental CoolerE 100-42280-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE

Invoice 7/1/2015

$41.45TotalTransaction Date 7/15/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

FIRE SAFETY USA, INC.  Refer 1093

Cash Payment $477.00GlovesE 100-42220-260 Uniforms

Invoice 80471 7/1/2015

$477.00TotalTransaction Date 7/15/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

GRAINGER  Refer 1049

Cash Payment $54.96Safety GlassesE 100-43100-215 Shop Supplies

Invoice 9781288148 7/1/2015

$54.96TotalTransaction Date 7/7/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

HARDWARE HANK  Refer 1058

Cash Payment $76.91June Landscape SuppliesE 100-45200-225 Landscaping Materials

Invoice 6/30/2015

$76.91TotalTransaction Date 7/7/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

HARFF, DR. KIMBERLY  Refer 1047

Cash Payment $200.00Hall Rental July 5th 2015E 100-48205-810 Refunds & Reimburseme

Invoice 7/6/2015

$200.00TotalTransaction Date 7/7/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

HEALTH PARTNERS  Refer 1069

Cash Payment $253.66Premium - AugE 100-41400-151 Med/Dental Insurance

Invoice 60242232 7/7/2015

Cash Payment $413.08Premium - AugE 100-41430-151 Med/Dental Insurance

Invoice 60242232 7/7/2015

Cash Payment $828.70Premium - AugE 100-43000-151 Med/Dental Insurance

Invoice 60242232 7/7/2015

Cash Payment $352.95Premium - AugE 100-43000-151 Med/Dental Insurance

Invoice 60242232 7/7/2015

$1,848.39TotalTransaction Date 7/13/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

HEINS, DENICE  Refer 1055

Cash Payment $120.00StorageE 100-41940-520 Buildings and Structures

Invoice 7/6/2015

$120.00TotalTransaction Date 7/7/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

JUNCTION TOWING & AUTO REPA  Refer 1062

Cash Payment $205.00Towing for Andrew StarnerE 100-41435-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 41083 7/8/2015



Payments

HANOVER 07/17/15 10:54 AM

Page 4

Current Period: July 2015

$205.00TotalTransaction Date 7/13/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

KAUL DESIGN GROUP, LLC  Refer 1054

Cash Payment $200.00July Maintenance Package for JulyE 201-41330-437 Other Miscellaneous

Invoice 15-095 7/2/2015

$200.00TotalTransaction Date 7/7/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

KENNEY, JEROME & LYNETTE  Refer 1051

Cash Payment $50.00Hall Rental July 6, 2015E 100-48205-810 Refunds & Reimburseme

Invoice 7/6/2015

$50.00TotalTransaction Date 7/7/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

KOTTKE, BRIAN  Refer 1101

Cash Payment $65.45Service Engine OilE 100-42260-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE

Invoice 7/13/2015

Cash Payment $109.90Compartment AlarmE 100-42260-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE

Invoice 7/13/2015

$175.35TotalTransaction Date 7/15/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

LOFFLER COMPANIES, INC.  Refer 1114

Cash Payment $36.22Contract Overage for 6/17/15-7/16/15E 100-41570-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE

Invoice 2021258 7/10/2015

$36.22TotalTransaction Date 7/16/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

MENARDS-BUFFALO  Refer 1067

Cash Payment $38.93Shop SuppliesE 100-43100-215 Shop Supplies

Invoice 89228 7/9/2015

Cash Payment $47.94Shop SuppliesE 100-45200-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE

Invoice 89228 7/9/2015

Cash Payment $105.88Garden/Pest Control SuppliesE 100-45200-441 Community Garden

Invoice 89228 7/9/2015

$192.75TotalTransaction Date 7/13/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

METRO WEST INSPECTION SERVI  Refer 1061

Cash Payment $122.1712119 8thE 100-42401-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 7/10/2015

Cash Payment $35.009984 4thE 100-42401-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 7/10/2015

$157.17TotalTransaction Date 7/13/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

MILLER TRUCKING & LANDSCAPE  Refer 1073

Cash Payment $41.861 1/2inch RiverE 100-41940-520 Buildings and Structures

Invoice 7/2/2015

$41.86TotalTransaction Date 7/14/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

MINNESOTA EXTERIORS, INC  Refer 1088

Cash Payment $200.00Instructor I Certification ExamE 100-42240-208 Training and Instruction

Invoice 3487 6/11/2015

$200.00TotalTransaction Date 7/15/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

MN PUBLIC FACILITIES AUTHORIT  Refer 1052

Cash Payment $93,000.00PrincipalE 602-47000-601 Debt Srv Bond Principal

Invoice 7/6/2015

Cash Payment $6,675.35InterestE 602-47000-611 Bond Interest

Invoice 7/6/2015



Payments

HANOVER 07/17/15 10:54 AM

Page 5

Current Period: July 2015

$99,675.35TotalTransaction Date 7/7/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

MONTICELLO ANIMAL CONTROL  Refer 1071

Cash Payment $50.00Shepard pick up 846 Meander RoadE 100-42700-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 812 7/7/2015

$50.00TotalTransaction Date 7/13/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

NOVAK-FLECK, INC  Refer 1098

Cash Payment $750.00ErosionE 811-48200-810 Refunds & Reimburseme

Invoice 7/15/2015

Cash Payment $1,000.00InfrastructureE 817-48200-810 Refunds & Reimburseme

Invoice 7/15/2015

Cash Payment $1,500.00LandscapeE 815-48200-810 Refunds & Reimburseme

Invoice 7/15/2015

$3,250.00TotalTransaction Date 7/15/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

OLIVER, SUSAN A.  Refer 1107

Cash Payment $100.00Shelter Rental July 11, 2015E 100-48205-810 Refunds & Reimburseme

Invoice 7/13/2015

$100.00TotalTransaction Date 7/16/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

PRICE CUSTOM HOMES  Refer 1116

Cash Payment $1,500.00Landscape - 1341 Oakwood LnE 815-48200-810 Refunds & Reimburseme

Invoice 7/16/2015

Cash Payment $750.00Erosion - 1341 Oakwood lnE 811-48200-810 Refunds & Reimburseme

Invoice 7/16/2015

Cash Payment $1,000.00Infrastructure - 1341 Oakwood LnE 817-48200-810 Refunds & Reimburseme

Invoice 7/16/2015

Cash Payment $1,205.00Escrow - 10195 Kaitlin AvenueE 818-48200-810 Refunds & Reimburseme

Invoice 7/16/2015

$4,455.00TotalTransaction Date 7/16/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

RUPP ANDERSON SQUIRES & WA  Refer 1070

Cash Payment $988.34City Council Mtgs, marijuana and public 
bathroom ordinance

E 100-41610-304 Legal Fees

Invoice 3047 7/7/2015

$988.34TotalTransaction Date 7/13/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

SCHENDEL, JIM  Refer 1102

Cash Payment $32.00FuelE 100-42260-212 Motor Fuels

Invoice 7/13/2015

$32.00TotalTransaction Date 7/15/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

SCHUSTER, MIKE  Refer 1100

Cash Payment $2,250.00ErosionE 811-48200-810 Refunds & Reimburseme

Invoice 7/15/2015

Cash Payment $1,000.00InfrastructureE 817-48200-810 Refunds & Reimburseme

Invoice 7/15/2015

$3,250.00TotalTransaction Date 7/15/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

ST SERVICES INC. OF BUFFALO  Refer 1113

Cash Payment $90.00Mowing - 30274 109th AveE 100-43100-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 2935 6/19/2015



Payments

HANOVER 07/17/15 10:54 AM

Page 6

Current Period: July 2015

Cash Payment $110.00Mowing - 10026 4th ST NEE 100-43100-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 2935 6/19/2015

Cash Payment $90.00Mowing - 675 Kadler CirE 100-43100-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 2935 6/19/2015

Cash Payment $90.00Mowing - 500 KadlerE 100-43100-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 2935 6/19/2015

Cash Payment $90.00Mowing - 520 KadlerE 100-43100-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 2935 6/19/2015

Cash Payment $90.00Mowing - 580 KadlerE 100-43100-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 2935 6/19/2015

Cash Payment $90.00Mowing - corner of Kadler Cir & KaylaE 100-43100-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 2935 6/19/2015

Cash Payment $150.00Mowing - corner of 12th & River Rd & the empty 
lots

E 100-43100-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 2935 6/19/2015

$800.00TotalTransaction Date 7/16/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

SWENSON, ERIC & ABBY  Refer 1109

Cash Payment $200.00Hall Rental July 12, 2015E 100-48205-810 Refunds & Reimburseme

Invoice 7/13/2015

$200.00TotalTransaction Date 7/16/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

WEX BANK  Refer 1105

Cash Payment $200.91FD FuelE 100-42260-212 Motor Fuels

Invoice 41623396 7/15/2015

Cash Payment $39.00Late FeeE 100-43100-212 Motor Fuels

Invoice 41623396 7/15/2015

Cash Payment $127.65FD FuelE 100-42260-212 Motor Fuels

Invoice 41268159 7/15/2015

Cash Payment $39.00Late feeE 100-43100-212 Motor Fuels

Invoice 41268159 7/15/2015

Cash Payment $82.18Big MowerE 100-45200-212 Motor Fuels

Invoice 41628682 7/15/2015

Cash Payment $718.96PW FuelE 100-43100-212 Motor Fuels

Invoice 41628682 7/15/2015

$1,207.70TotalTransaction Date 7/16/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

WRIGHT COUNTY AUDITOR-TREA  Refer 1053

Cash Payment $7,847.50July Patrol ServicesE 100-42102-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 7/6/2015

$7,847.50TotalTransaction Date 7/7/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

XCEL ENERGY  Refer 1065

Cash Payment $1,974.97City LightsE 100-43160-381 Electric Utilities

Invoice 462889321 7/6/2015

$1,974.97TotalTransaction Date 7/13/2015 Cash 10100Due 0



Payments

HANOVER 07/17/15 10:54 AM

Page 7

Current Period: July 2015

Pre-Written Check $0.00

Checks to be Generated by the Computer $142,811.09

Total $142,811.09

Fund Summary
10100  Cash

818 MISC ESCROWS FUND $1,893.75

817 INFRASTRUCTURE ESCROW FUND $3,000.00

815 LANDSCAPE ESCROW FUND $3,000.00

811 EROSION CONTROL ESCROW FUND $3,750.00

602 SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND $99,675.35

401 GENERAL CAPITAL PROJECTS $600.58

313 2010 GO EQUIPMENT CERTIFICATES $1,405.91

201 EDA SPECIAL REVENUE FUND $200.00

100 GENERAL FUND $29,285.50

$142,811.09



Payments

HANOVER 07/10/15 10:04 AM

Page 1

Current Period: July 2015

$231.98Computer Dollar Amt

Batch Name 07/10/15 PAY

Payment Posted

POSTMASTER Ck# 031095  7/10/2015Refer 1060

Cash Payment $231.98July NewsletterE 100-41570-322 Postage

Invoice

$231.98TotalTransaction Date 7/10/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

Pre-Written Check $231.98

Checks to be Generated by the Computer $0.00

Total $231.98

Fund Summary
10100  Cash

100 GENERAL FUND $231.98

$231.98





















Paid Register

HANOVER 07/14/15 1:51 PM

Page 1

Check

Numbe

Employee

Number Employee Name

Pay

Period

Pay Group

Description

Check

Amount

Check

Date Status

500306 000000003 Hagen, Brian S. 15 Bi-Weekly $1,797.13 7/17/2015 Outstanding

500305 000000008 Doboszenski, Jason 15 Bi-Weekly $1,306.98 7/17/2015 Outstanding

500304 000000011 Biren, Amy 15 Bi-Weekly $1,122.56 7/17/2015 Outstanding

500309 000000005 Vogel, Scott F. 15 Bi-Weekly $1,608.78 7/17/2015 Outstanding

500308 000000058 Schmitz, Luke 15 Bi-Weekly $643.05 7/17/2015 Outstanding

500307 000000060 Lindrud, Elizabeth 15 Bi-Weekly $737.15 7/17/2015 Outstanding

$7,215.65



Employee

Number & Name

Deduction

Amount

Deduction/Benefit 

Code & Description

Benefit

Amount

Deduction/Benefit Register

HANOVER

Pay Group: 01 Bi-Weekly

Pay Periods: 2015(15)

07/14/15 1:54 PM

Page 1

000000011 $199.27Federal001 Biren, Amy

000000008 $137.99Doboszenski, Jason

000000003 $242.45Hagen, Brian S.

000000060 $56.68Lindrud, Elizabeth

000000058 $65.91Schmitz, Luke

000000005 $171.69Vogel, Scott F.

$873.99Federal

000000011 $85.42State Tax - MN005 Biren, Amy

000000008 $61.87Doboszenski, Jason

000000003 $106.67Hagen, Brian S.

000000060 $30.33Lindrud, Elizabeth

000000058 $29.84Schmitz, Luke

000000005 $73.89Vogel, Scott F.

$388.02State Tax - MN

000000011 $23.77Medicare049 Biren, Amy

000000008 $25.45Doboszenski, Jason

000000003 $36.25Hagen, Brian S.

000000060 $13.92Lindrud, Elizabeth

000000058 $11.60Schmitz, Luke

000000005 $31.32Vogel, Scott F.

$142.31Medicare

000000011 $101.63Social Security051 Biren, Amy

000000008 $108.82Doboszenski, Jason

000000003 $155.00Hagen, Brian S.

000000060 $59.52Lindrud, Elizabeth

000000058 $49.60Schmitz, Luke

000000005 $133.92Vogel, Scott F.

$608.49Social Security

000000011Social Security Benefit $101.63501 Biren, Amy

000000008 $108.82Doboszenski, Jason

000000003 $155.00Hagen, Brian S.

000000060 $59.52Lindrud, Elizabeth

000000058 $49.60Schmitz, Luke

000000005 $133.92Vogel, Scott F.



Employee

Number & Name

Deduction

Amount

Deduction/Benefit 

Code & Description

Benefit

Amount

Deduction/Benefit Register

HANOVER

Pay Group: 01 Bi-Weekly

Pay Periods: 2015(15)

07/14/15 1:54 PM

Page 2

$608.49Social Security Benefit

000000011Medicare Benefit $23.77502 Biren, Amy

000000008 $25.45Doboszenski, Jason

000000003 $36.25Hagen, Brian S.

000000060 $13.92Lindrud, Elizabeth

000000058 $11.60Schmitz, Luke

000000005 $31.32Vogel, Scott F.

$142.31Medicare Benefit

$2,012.81 $750.80Grand Total



Employee

Number & Name

Deduction

Amount

Deduction/Benefit 

Code & Description

Benefit

Amount

Deduction/Benefit Register

HANOVER

Pay Group: 01 Bi-Weekly

Pay Periods: 2015(15)

07/14/15 1:55 PM

Page 1

000000011 $106.55PERA052 Biren, Amy

000000008 $114.09Doboszenski, Jason

000000003 $162.50Hagen, Brian S.

000000060 $62.40Lindrud, Elizabeth

000000005 $140.40Vogel, Scott F.

$585.94PERA

000000011PERA ER $122.94503 Biren, Amy

000000008 $131.64Doboszenski, Jason

000000003 $187.50Hagen, Brian S.

000000060 $72.00Lindrud, Elizabeth

000000005 $162.00Vogel, Scott F.

$676.08PERA ER

$585.94 $676.08Grand Total



Paid Register

HANOVER 07/14/15 2:55 PM

Page 1

Check

Numbe

Employee

Number Employee Name

Pay

Period

Pay Group

Description

Check

Amount

Check

Date Status

500311 000000012 Hammerseng, Doug 1 Council $743.42 7/17/2015 Outstanding

500312 000000013 Kauffman, Christopher 1 Council $1,260.58 7/17/2015 Outstanding

500313 000000015 Vajda, John 1 Council $881.94 7/17/2015 Outstanding

500314 000000016 Warpula, Ken 1 Council $798.83 7/17/2015 Outstanding

500315 000000059 Zajicek, Jim 1 Council $965.06 7/17/2015 Outstanding

$4,649.83



Employee

Number & Name

Deduction

Amount

Deduction/Benefit 

Code & Description

Benefit

Amount

Deduction/Benefit Register

HANOVER

Pay Group: 02 Council

Pay Periods: 2015(1)

07/14/15 2:56 PM

Page 1

000000012 $11.67Medicare049 Hammerseng, Doug

000000013 $19.79Kauffman, Christopher

000000015 $13.85Vajda, John

000000016 $12.54Warpula, Ken

000000059 $15.15Zajicek, Jim

$73.00Medicare

000000012 $49.91Social Security051 Hammerseng, Doug

000000013 $84.63Kauffman, Christopher

000000015 $59.21Vajda, John

000000016 $53.63Warpula, Ken

000000059 $64.79Zajicek, Jim

$312.17Social Security

000000012Social Security Benefit $49.91501 Hammerseng, Doug

000000013 $84.63Kauffman, Christopher

000000015 $59.21Vajda, John

000000016 $53.63Warpula, Ken

000000059 $64.79Zajicek, Jim

$312.17Social Security Benefit

000000012Medicare Benefit $11.67502 Hammerseng, Doug

000000013 $19.79Kauffman, Christopher

000000015 $13.85Vajda, John

000000016 $12.54Warpula, Ken

000000059 $15.15Zajicek, Jim

$73.00Medicare Benefit

$385.17 $385.17Grand Total



07/17/15 11:27 AM

Cash Balances

HANOVER
Page 1

July 2015

Fund
Begin

Month
GL Debits

Month
GL Credits

Month Balance

100 GENERAL FUND $390,827.24 $1,008.63 $103,563.67 $288,272.20

107 FIRE DEPT DONATIONS FUND $29,270.28 $0.00 $0.00 $29,270.28

201 EDA SPECIAL REVENUE FUND $75,034.82 $0.00 $4,209.77 $70,825.05

205 EDA BUSINESS INCENTIVE FUND $204,294.34 $0.00 $0.00 $204,294.34

311 2008A GO CIP REFUNDING BOND $37,604.68 $0.00 $4,987.50 $32,617.18

312 2009A GO IMP REFUNDING BOND $18,521.35 $0.00 $2,992.00 $15,529.35

313 2010 GO EQUIPMENT CERTIFICATES -$20,234.25 $61.21 $23,518.38 -$43,691.42

314 2011A GO IMP CROSSOVER REF BD $359,913.52 $0.00 $0.00 $359,913.52

401 GENERAL CAPITAL PROJECTS $353,344.29 $0.00 $36,741.58 $316,602.71

402 PARKS CAPITAL PROJECTS $233,547.94 $0.00 $228.00 $233,319.94

403 FIRE DEPT CAPITAL FUND $111,115.94 $0.00 $0.00 $111,115.94

404 HISTORICAL CAPITAL PROJ FUND $75,407.72 $0.00 $0.00 $75,407.72

407 TIF REDEV DIST #1 $4,807.40 $0.00 $0.00 $4,807.40

408 8TH ST CAPITAL PROJ FUND $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

411 CITY HALL CAPITAL PROJ FUND $55,328.83 $0.00 $0.00 $55,328.83

412 CROW RIVER CROSSING PROJ FD $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

416 RIVER RD RECON FUND $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

417 EQUIPMENT CAPITAL FUND $52,581.87 $0.00 $0.00 $52,581.87

418 STREET CAPITAL PROJ FUND $433,615.77 $0.00 $0.00 $433,615.77

601 WATER ENTERPRISE FUND $739,492.65 $0.00 $2,812.75 $736,679.90

602 SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND $333,808.51 $0.00 $103,525.18 $230,283.33

603 STORM WATER ENTERPRISE FUND $131,989.66 $0.00 $0.00 $131,989.66

611 WATER CAPITAL IMP FUND $402,621.26 $0.00 $0.00 $402,621.26

612 SEWER CAPITAL IMP FUND $1,673,175.41 $0.00 $0.00 $1,673,175.41

613 STORM WATER CAPITAL IMP FUND $546,109.59 $0.00 $0.00 $546,109.59

804 SCHENDELS FIELD ESC FUND $145,266.61 $0.00 $0.00 $145,266.61

809 BRIDGES AT HANOVER ESC FUND -$13,476.50 $0.00 $0.00 -$13,476.50

811 EROSION CONTROL ESCROW FUND $38,500.00 $0.00 $5,250.00 $33,250.00

815 LANDSCAPE ESCROW FUND $53,000.00 $0.00 $6,000.00 $47,000.00

817 INFRASTRUCTURE ESCROW FUND $26,000.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $21,000.00

818 MISC ESCROWS FUND $9,269.75 $0.00 $1,972.90 $7,296.85

820 BRIDGES TOWNHOMES ESC FUND $3,527.60 $0.00 $0.00 $3,527.60

821 QUAIL PASS 2ND ADD ESCROW FD $11,728.91 $0.00 $0.00 $11,728.91

900 INTEREST $28,554.16 $0.00 $0.00 $28,554.16

$6,544,549.35 $1,069.84 $300,801.73 $6,244,817.46



07/17/15 11:28 AM

Revenue Budget by Source

HANOVER
Page 1

Source
Alt
Code Account Descr

July
2015 Amt

2015
YTD Amt

2015 YTD
Budget

2015 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Fund 100 GENERAL FUND

TAXES R 100-31000 Property Taxes - General $0.00 $0.00 $995,728.00 $995,728.00 0.00%

TAXES R 100-31020 Property Taxes - Fire $0.00 $0.00 $95,624.00 $95,624.00 0.00%

TAXES R 100-31800 Franchise Fees $0.00 $3,058.64 $10,000.00 $6,941.36 30.59%

$0.00 $3,058.64 $1,101,352.00 $1,098,293.36 0.28%Source Alt Code TAXES

SERVICE R 100-34000 Charges for Services $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

SERVICE R 100-34101 City Hall Rent Revenue $0.00 $5,425.00 $5,000.00 -$425.00 108.50%

SERVICE R 100-34107 Assessment Search Fees $0.00 $275.00 $300.00 $25.00 91.67%

SERVICE R 100-34108 Administrative Fees $0.00 $1,346.55 $2,000.00 $653.45 67.33%

SERVICE R 100-34109 Copies/Faxes $0.00 $7.25 $80.00 $72.75 9.06%

SERVICE R 100-34207 Fire Protection Services $0.00 $25,558.10 $106,964.00 $81,405.90 23.89%

SERVICE R 100-34403 Recycling Rev/Reimb $0.00 $2,131.40 $6,000.00 $3,868.60 35.52%

SERVICE R 100-34740 Park & Rec Concessions $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

SERVICE R 100-34780 Park Rental Fees $0.00 $2,270.85 $2,000.00 -$270.85 113.54%

SERVICE R 100-34940 Cemetery Revenues $0.00 $1,950.00 $2,000.00 $50.00 97.50%

$0.00 $38,964.15 $124,344.00 $85,379.85 31.34%Source Alt Code SERVICE

MISC R 100-36100 Special Assessments $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

MISC R 100-36200 Miscellaneous Revenues $0.00 $7,894.98 $0.00 -$7,894.98 0.00%

MISC R 100-36210 Interest Earnings $0.00 $1,023.03 $1,000.00 -$23.03 102.30%

MISC R 100-36215 Investment Income/Loss $0.00 $4,603.59 $7,000.00 $2,396.41 65.77%

MISC R 100-36230 Contributions and Donations $0.00 $4,345.00 $0.00 -$4,345.00 0.00%

MISC R 100-36235 Insurance Dividends $0.00 $0.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00 0.00%

MISC R 100-36250 Damage Deposits $0.00 $6,400.00 $7,000.00 $600.00 91.43%

MISC R 100-36290 Sale of Vehicles/Equipment $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

MISC R 100-39203 Transfer from Other Fund $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$0.00 $24,266.60 $21,000.00 -$3,266.60 115.56%Source Alt Code MISC

LIC PERM R 100-32110 Alchoholic Beverages $0.00 $10,370.00 $10,300.00 -$70.00 100.68%

LIC PERM R 100-32180 Other Bus. Licenses/Permits $0.00 $262.00 $100.00 -$162.00 262.00%

LIC PERM R 100-32210 Building Permits $0.00 $62,746.36 $70,000.00 $7,253.64 89.64%

LIC PERM R 100-32240 Animal Licenses $0.00 $80.00 $100.00 $20.00 80.00%

LIC PERM R 100-32260 Solid Waste Hauler Licenses $0.00 $500.00 $1,500.00 $1,000.00 33.33%

LIC PERM R 100-32270 Rental Dwelling Licenses $0.00 $0.00 $300.00 $300.00 0.00%

LIC PERM R 100-32280 Other Non-Business Lic/Per $0.00 $10.00 $50.00 $40.00 20.00%

$0.00 $73,968.36 $82,350.00 $8,381.64 89.82%Source Alt Code LIC PERM

INTGOVT R 100-33400 State Grants and Aids $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

INTGOVT R 100-33401 Local Government Aid $0.00 $0.00 $105,859.00 $105,859.00 0.00%

INTGOVT R 100-33410 MV Credit $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

INTGOVT R 100-33420 PERA Aid $0.00 $0.00 $339.00 $339.00 0.00%

INTGOVT R 100-33422 State Fire Aid $0.00 $2,000.00 $24,000.00 $22,000.00 8.33%

INTGOVT R 100-33426 State Police Aid $0.00 $0.00 $4,600.00 $4,600.00 0.00%

INTGOVT R 100-33610 County Grants/Aid for Roads $0.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 0.00%

$0.00 $2,000.00 $136,298.00 $134,298.00 1.47%Source Alt Code INTGOVT

FINES R 100-35100 Court Fines $0.00 $1,242.48 $1,500.00 $257.52 82.83%

$0.00 $1,242.48 $1,500.00 $257.52 82.83%Source Alt Code FINES

$0.00 $143,500.23 $1,466,844.00 $1,323,343.77 9.78%Fund 100 GENERAL FUND



07/17/15 11:28 AM

Expenditure Budget Report

HANOVER
Page 1

Dept
Abbrev Account Descr

July
2015
Amt

2015
YTD Amt

2015 YTD
Budget

2015 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Fund 100 GENERAL FUND

Dept 41110 Council

COUNCIL E 100-41110-111 Committee Wages/Mee $5,035.00 $5,025.82 $13,700.00 $8,674.18 36.68%

COUNCIL E 100-41110-122 FICA $312.17 $312.17 $850.00 $537.83 36.73%

COUNCIL E 100-41110-123 Medicare $73.00 $73.00 $199.00 $126.00 36.68%

COUNCIL E 100-41110-150 Worker s Comp (GENE $53.46 $73.80 $150.00 $76.20 49.20%

COUNCIL E 100-41110-152 Worker s Comp Benefit $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

COUNCIL E 100-41110-208 Training and Instructio $0.00 $315.00 $1,500.00 $1,185.00 21.00%

COUNCIL E 100-41110-306 Dues & Subscriptions $0.00 $6,292.40 $2,500.00 -$3,792.40 251.70%

COUNCIL E 100-41110-331 Travel Expenses $0.00 $61.24 $2,000.00 $1,938.76 3.06%

COUNCIL E 100-41110-437 Other Miscellaneous $32.25 $2,055.55 $5,000.00 $2,944.45 41.11%

$5,505.88 $14,208.98 $25,899.00 $11,690.02 54.86%Dept 41110 Council

Dept 41330 Boards and Commissions

BRDCOMM E 100-41330-111 Committee Wages/Mee $0.00 $0.00 $5,500.00 $5,500.00 0.00%

BRDCOMM E 100-41330-150 Worker s Comp (GENE $158.75 $158.75 $0.00 -$158.75 0.00%

BRDCOMM E 100-41330-160 Liability Insurance Emp $0.00 $0.00 $100.00 $100.00 0.00%

BRDCOMM E 100-41330-208 Training and Instructio $0.00 $0.00 $150.00 $150.00 0.00%

BRDCOMM E 100-41330-331 Travel Expenses $0.00 $0.00 $100.00 $100.00 0.00%

BRDCOMM E 100-41330-437 Other Miscellaneous $0.00 $21.06 $0.00 -$21.06 0.00%

$158.75 $179.81 $5,850.00 $5,670.19 3.07%Dept 41330 Boards and Commissions

Dept 41400 City Administrator

CITYADM E 100-41400-101 Full-Time Employees R $0.00 $12,033.30 $65,500.00 $53,466.70 18.37%

CITYADM E 100-41400-121 PERA $0.00 $1,182.02 $4,900.00 $3,717.98 24.12%

CITYADM E 100-41400-122 FICA $0.00 $977.13 $4,100.00 $3,122.87 23.83%

CITYADM E 100-41400-123 Medicare $0.00 $228.52 $900.00 $671.48 25.39%

CITYADM E 100-41400-131 Employer Paid Health $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

CITYADM E 100-41400-132 Employer Paid HSA $721.29 $3,133.47 $0.00 -$3,133.47 0.00%

CITYADM E 100-41400-134 Employer Paid Life $30.67 $110.08 $0.00 -$110.08 0.00%

CITYADM E 100-41400-150 Worker s Comp (GENE $330.46 $330.46 $0.00 -$330.46 0.00%

CITYADM E 100-41400-151 Med/Dental Insurance $633.68 $4,061.69 $10,890.00 $6,828.31 37.30%

CITYADM E 100-41400-208 Training and Instructio $0.00 $823.90 $1,000.00 $176.10 82.39%

CITYADM E 100-41400-306 Dues & Subscriptions $0.00 $185.00 $0.00 -$185.00 0.00%

CITYADM E 100-41400-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$1,716.10 $23,065.57 $87,290.00 $64,224.43 26.42%Dept 41400 City Administrator

Dept 41410 Elections

ELECTION E 100-41410-200 Office Supplies (GENER $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

ELECTION E 100-41410-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

ELECTION E 100-41410-351 Legal Notices Publishin $0.00 $0.00 $250.00 $250.00 0.00%

ELECTION E 100-41410-400 Repairs & Maint Cont ( $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $1,250.00 $1,250.00 0.00%Dept 41410 Elections

Dept 41430 Clerical Staff

CLERICAL E 100-41430-101 Full-Time Employees R $8,141.60 $66,499.18 $82,600.00 $16,100.82 80.51%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-102 Full-Time Employees O $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-103 Part-Time Employees $0.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 0.00%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-121 PERA $610.62 $4,842.12 $6,200.00 $1,357.88 78.10%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-122 FICA $504.78 $4,577.88 $5,100.00 $522.12 89.76%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-123 Medicare $118.05 $1,070.58 $1,200.00 $129.42 89.22%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-131 Employer Paid Health $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-132 Employer Paid HSA $494.85 $3,463.95 $0.00 -$3,463.95 0.00%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-134 Employer Paid Life $168.77 $2,099.62 $0.00 -$2,099.62 0.00%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-142 Unemployment Benefit $0.00 $357.00 $0.00 -$357.00 0.00%



Dept
Abbrev Account Descr

July
2015
Amt

2015
YTD Amt

2015 YTD
Budget

2015 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Page 2

07/17/15 11:28 AM

Expenditure Budget Report

HANOVER

CLERICAL E 100-41430-150 Worker s Comp (GENE $207.34 $207.34 $0.00 -$207.34 0.00%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-151 Med/Dental Insurance $1,602.73 $10,752.51 $16,932.00 $6,179.49 63.50%

$11,848.74 $93,870.18 $117,032.00 $23,161.82 80.21%Dept 41430 Clerical Staff

Dept 41435 Staff Expenses

STAFFEXP E 100-41435-208 Training and Instructio $0.00 $135.00 $1,500.00 $1,365.00 9.00%

STAFFEXP E 100-41435-260 Uniforms $0.00 $0.00 $300.00 $300.00 0.00%

STAFFEXP E 100-41435-306 Dues & Subscriptions $0.00 $165.36 $4,000.00 $3,834.64 4.13%

STAFFEXP E 100-41435-310 Other Professional Serv $205.00 $355.00 $1,000.00 $645.00 35.50%

STAFFEXP E 100-41435-331 Travel Expenses $0.00 $165.76 $1,500.00 $1,334.24 11.05%

$205.00 $821.12 $8,300.00 $7,478.88 9.89%Dept 41435 Staff Expenses

Dept 41530 Accounting

ACCTING E 100-41530-101 Full-Time Employees R $960.00 $960.00 $0.00 -$960.00 0.00%

ACCTING E 100-41530-121 PERA $72.00 $72.00 $0.00 -$72.00 0.00%

ACCTING E 100-41530-122 FICA $59.52 $59.52 $0.00 -$59.52 0.00%

ACCTING E 100-41530-123 Medicare $13.92 $13.92 $0.00 -$13.92 0.00%

ACCTING E 100-41530-134 Employer Paid Life $50.00 $50.00 $0.00 -$50.00 0.00%

ACCTING E 100-41530-150 Worker s Comp (GENE $330.46 $330.46 $0.00 -$330.46 0.00%

ACCTING E 100-41530-151 Med/Dental Insurance $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

ACCTING E 100-41530-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $33,250.00 $0.00 -$33,250.00 0.00%

$1,485.90 $34,735.90 $0.00 -$34,735.90 0.00%Dept 41530 Accounting

Dept 41540 Auditing

AUDITING E 100-41540-301 Auditing and Acctg Ser $0.00 $23,400.00 $26,000.00 $2,600.00 90.00%

$0.00 $23,400.00 $26,000.00 $2,600.00 90.00%Dept 41540 Auditing

Dept 41550 Assessing

ASSESS G E 100-41550-310 Other Professional Serv $6,128.71 $17,522.96 $17,600.00 $77.04 99.56%

$6,128.71 $17,522.96 $17,600.00 $77.04 99.56%Dept 41550 Assessing

Dept 41570 Purchasing

PURCHASE E 100-41570-200 Office Supplies (GENER $121.55 $1,503.57 $5,500.00 $3,996.43 27.34%

PURCHASE E 100-41570-205 Bank Fees $0.00 $4.75 $100.00 $95.25 4.75%

PURCHASE E 100-41570-207 Computer Supplies $1,334.00 $3,443.99 $3,000.00 -$443.99 114.80%

PURCHASE E 100-41570-220 Repair/Maint Supply (G $98.45 $1,239.70 $6,800.00 $5,560.30 18.23%

PURCHASE E 100-41570-322 Postage $378.98 $1,136.37 $1,500.00 $363.63 75.76%

PURCHASE E 100-41570-570 Office Equip and Furnis $0.00 $0.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 0.00%

$1,932.98 $7,328.38 $20,900.00 $13,571.62 35.06%Dept 41570 Purchasing

Dept 41600 Computer

COMPUTER E 100-41600-220 Repair/Maint Supply (G $480.00 $1,645.00 $0.00 -$1,645.00 0.00%

COMPUTER E 100-41600-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$480.00 $1,645.00 $0.00 -$1,645.00 0.00%Dept 41600 Computer

Dept 41610 City Attorney

CITYATNY E 100-41610-304 Legal Fees $1,067.45 $5,403.69 $27,295.00 $21,891.31 19.80%

$1,067.45 $5,403.69 $27,295.00 $21,891.31 19.80%Dept 41610 City Attorney

Dept 41910 Planning and Zoning

PLANZONG E 100-41910-310 Other Professional Serv $2,517.50 $7,813.75 $17,000.00 $9,186.25 45.96%

$2,517.50 $7,813.75 $17,000.00 $9,186.25 45.96%Dept 41910 Planning and Zoning

Dept 41940 General Govt Buildings/Plant

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-210 Operating Supplies (GE $0.00 $617.12 $5,000.00 $4,382.88 12.34%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-220 Repair/Maint Supply (G $1,370.00 $3,156.96 $10,000.00 $6,843.04 31.57%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-306 Dues & Subscriptions $0.00 $250.00 $0.00 -$250.00 0.00%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-310 Other Professional Serv $745.00 $3,377.25 $8,400.00 $5,022.75 40.21%



Dept
Abbrev Account Descr

July
2015
Amt

2015
YTD Amt

2015 YTD
Budget

2015 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Page 3

07/17/15 11:28 AM

Expenditure Budget Report

HANOVER

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-321 Telephone $257.26 $1,821.83 $5,500.00 $3,678.17 33.12%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-325 Taxes $0.00 $220.00 $7,000.00 $6,780.00 3.14%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-381 Electric Utilities $396.04 $3,453.41 $9,000.00 $5,546.59 38.37%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-383 Gas Utilities $55.42 $1,457.55 $5,000.00 $3,542.45 29.15%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-384 Refuse/Garbage Dispos $199.40 $1,165.73 $2,000.00 $834.27 58.29%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-415 Other Equipment Renta $0.00 $120.50 $500.00 $379.50 24.10%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-520 Buildings and Structure $458.23 $2,783.53 $5,000.00 $2,216.47 55.67%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-560 Furniture and Fixtures $0.00 $0.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 0.00%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-580 Other Equipment $1,262.78 $1,262.78 $1,000.00 -$262.78 126.28%

$4,744.13 $19,686.66 $60,900.00 $41,213.34 32.33%Dept 41940 General Govt Buildings/Plant

Dept 41950 Engineer

ENGINEER E 100-41950-303 Engineering Fees $971.00 $5,336.75 $25,000.00 $19,663.25 21.35%

$971.00 $5,336.75 $25,000.00 $19,663.25 21.35%Dept 41950 Engineer

Dept 41960 Insurance

INSURANCE E 100-41960-142 Unemployment Benefit $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

INSURANCE E 100-41960-150 Worker s Comp (GENE $0.00 $29,738.07 $2,500.00 -$27,238.071189.52%

INSURANCE E 100-41960-152 Worker s Comp Benefit $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

INSURANCE E 100-41960-361 General Liability Ins $0.00 $9,153.50 $35,000.00 $25,846.50 26.15%

$0.00 $38,891.57 $37,500.00 -$1,391.57 103.71%Dept 41960 Insurance

Dept 41970 Legal Publications

LEGALPUB E 100-41970-341 Employment $0.00 $435.42 $250.00 -$185.42 174.17%

LEGALPUB E 100-41970-343 Other Advertising $0.00 $0.00 $250.00 $250.00 0.00%

LEGALPUB E 100-41970-351 Legal Notices Publishin $0.00 $269.12 $2,000.00 $1,730.88 13.46%

LEGALPUB E 100-41970-354 Recording Fees $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 $500.00 0.00%

$0.00 $704.54 $3,000.00 $2,295.46 23.48%Dept 41970 Legal Publications

Dept 42101 Hennepin County Sheriff

HCSHERIFF E 100-42101-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $17,333.35 $69,335.00 $52,001.65 25.00%

$0.00 $17,333.35 $69,335.00 $52,001.65 25.00%Dept 42101 Hennepin County Sheriff

Dept 42102 Wright County Sheriff

WCSHERIFF E 100-42102-310 Other Professional Serv $7,847.50 $55,315.79 $94,170.00 $38,854.21 58.74%

$7,847.50 $55,315.79 $94,170.00 $38,854.21 58.74%Dept 42102 Wright County Sheriff

Dept 42210 Fire Dept Administration

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-103 Part-Time Employees $0.00 $0.00 $34,340.00 $34,340.00 0.00%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-122 FICA $0.00 $0.00 $2,129.00 $2,129.00 0.00%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-123 Medicare $0.00 $0.00 $515.00 $515.00 0.00%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-142 Unemployment Benefit $0.00 $22.21 $0.00 -$22.21 0.00%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-150 Worker s Comp (GENE $7,325.19 $10,071.14 $10,000.00 -$71.14 100.71%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-200 Office Supplies (GENER $0.00 $0.00 $200.00 $200.00 0.00%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-305 Medical and Dental Fee $0.00 $430.00 $4,000.00 $3,570.00 10.75%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-306 Dues & Subscriptions $0.00 $572.29 $950.00 $377.71 60.24%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-361 General Liability Ins $0.00 $2,370.08 $0.00 -$2,370.08 0.00%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-437 Other Miscellaneous $21.25 $88.50 $10,000.00 $9,911.50 0.89%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-700 Transfers (GENERAL) $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$7,346.44 $13,554.22 $62,134.00 $48,579.78 21.81%Dept 42210 Fire Dept Administration

Dept 42220 Fire Dept Equipment

FIREEQUIP E 100-42220-221 Equipment Parts $0.00 $802.29 $5,500.00 $4,697.71 14.59%

FIREEQUIP E 100-42220-228 Medical Supplies $0.00 $233.14 $1,500.00 $1,266.86 15.54%

FIREEQUIP E 100-42220-240 Small Tools and Minor $0.00 $0.00 $850.00 $850.00 0.00%

FIREEQUIP E 100-42220-260 Uniforms $477.00 $5,800.74 $4,500.00 -$1,300.74 128.91%

FIREEQUIP E 100-42220-580 Other Equipment $0.00 $835.79 $5,000.00 $4,164.21 16.72%



Dept
Abbrev Account Descr

July
2015
Amt

2015
YTD Amt

2015 YTD
Budget

2015 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Page 4

07/17/15 11:28 AM

Expenditure Budget Report

HANOVER

$477.00 $7,671.96 $17,350.00 $9,678.04 44.22%Dept 42220 Fire Dept Equipment

Dept 42240 Fire Dept Training

FIRETRNG E 100-42240-208 Training and Instructio $3,751.00 $7,614.00 $7,500.00 -$114.00 101.52%

FIRETRNG E 100-42240-331 Travel Expenses $0.00 $447.61 $1,500.00 $1,052.39 29.84%

$3,751.00 $8,061.61 $9,000.00 $938.39 89.57%Dept 42240 Fire Dept Training

Dept 42260 Fire Vehicles

FIREVEH E 100-42260-212 Motor Fuels $360.56 $1,907.19 $5,000.00 $3,092.81 38.14%

FIREVEH E 100-42260-220 Repair/Maint Supply (G $175.35 $3,631.52 $9,000.00 $5,368.48 40.35%

FIREVEH E 100-42260-240 Small Tools and Minor $0.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 0.00%

FIREVEH E 100-42260-323 Radio Units $0.00 $5,035.47 $7,465.00 $2,429.53 67.45%

$535.91 $10,574.18 $23,465.00 $12,890.82 45.06%Dept 42260 Fire Vehicles

Dept 42280 Fire Stations and Bldgs

FIREBLDG E 100-42280-215 Shop Supplies $0.00 $179.65 $1,650.00 $1,470.35 10.89%

FIREBLDG E 100-42280-220 Repair/Maint Supply (G $139.45 $1,766.57 $3,500.00 $1,733.43 50.47%

FIREBLDG E 100-42280-321 Telephone $29.52 $200.22 $800.00 $599.78 25.03%

FIREBLDG E 100-42280-325 Taxes $0.00 $0.00 $175.00 $175.00 0.00%

FIREBLDG E 100-42280-381 Electric Utilities $204.87 $1,537.00 $5,000.00 $3,463.00 30.74%

FIREBLDG E 100-42280-383 Gas Utilities $19.86 $3,516.31 $2,600.00 -$916.31 135.24%

$393.70 $7,199.75 $13,725.00 $6,525.25 52.46%Dept 42280 Fire Stations and Bldgs

Dept 42290 Fire Relief Association

FIRERELIEF E 100-42290-124 Fire Pension Contributi $0.00 $2,000.00 $29,500.00 $27,500.00 6.78%

FIRERELIEF E 100-42290-301 Auditing and Acctg Ser $6,500.00 $6,500.00 $6,000.00 -$500.00 108.33%

$6,500.00 $8,500.00 $35,500.00 $27,000.00 23.94%Dept 42290 Fire Relief Association

Dept 42401 Building Inspection Admin

INSPADMN E 100-42401-310 Other Professional Serv $612.09 $25,872.70 $25,000.00 -$872.70 103.49%

$612.09 $25,872.70 $25,000.00 -$872.70 103.49%Dept 42401 Building Inspection Admin

Dept 42700 Animal Control

ANIMCTRL E 100-42700-210 Operating Supplies (GE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

ANIMCTRL E 100-42700-310 Other Professional Serv $50.00 $50.00 $500.00 $450.00 10.00%

$50.00 $50.00 $500.00 $450.00 10.00%Dept 42700 Animal Control

Dept 42800 Cemetery

CEMETERY E 100-42800-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $0.00 $150.00 $150.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $150.00 $150.00 0.00%Dept 42800 Cemetery

Dept 43000 Public Works (GENERAL)

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-101 Full-Time Employees R $7,830.40 $50,078.41 $92,700.00 $42,621.59 54.02%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-102 Full-Time Employees O $0.00 $296.40 $0.00 -$296.40 0.00%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-103 Part-Time Employees $1,600.00 $2,354.75 $1,500.00 -$854.75 156.98%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-121 PERA $587.28 $4,206.28 $7,000.00 $2,793.72 60.09%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-122 FICA $584.68 $3,622.90 $5,700.00 $2,077.10 63.56%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-123 Medicare $136.74 $847.28 $1,300.00 $452.72 65.18%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-132 Employer Paid HSA $226.44 $1,538.92 $0.00 -$1,538.92 0.00%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-134 Employer Paid Life $282.86 $1,591.74 $0.00 -$1,591.74 0.00%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-142 Unemployment Benefit $0.00 $238.10 $0.00 -$238.10 0.00%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-150 Worker s Comp (GENE $7,793.34 $10,673.41 $9,000.00 -$1,673.41 118.59%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-151 Med/Dental Insurance $3,681.83 $18,584.63 $19,328.00 $743.37 96.15%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-152 Worker s Comp Benefit $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-208 Training and Instructio $0.00 $950.00 $1,500.00 $550.00 63.33%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-321 Telephone $158.46 $929.62 $0.00 -$929.62 0.00%

$22,882.03 $95,912.44 $138,028.00 $42,115.56 69.49%Dept 43000 Public Works (GENERAL)



Dept
Abbrev Account Descr

July
2015
Amt

2015
YTD Amt

2015 YTD
Budget

2015 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Page 5

07/17/15 11:28 AM

Expenditure Budget Report

HANOVER

Dept 43100 Hwys, Streets, & Roads

HWYROAD E 100-43100-212 Motor Fuels $1,383.18 $3,795.58 $10,000.00 $6,204.42 37.96%

HWYROAD E 100-43100-215 Shop Supplies $244.05 $606.85 $5,000.00 $4,393.15 12.14%

HWYROAD E 100-43100-220 Repair/Maint Supply (G $1,337.34 $2,702.14 $7,500.00 $4,797.86 36.03%

HWYROAD E 100-43100-240 Small Tools and Minor $13.99 $637.93 $4,000.00 $3,362.07 15.95%

HWYROAD E 100-43100-260 Uniforms $141.95 $180.31 $2,000.00 $1,819.69 9.02%

HWYROAD E 100-43100-310 Other Professional Serv $800.00 $2,143.00 $3,000.00 $857.00 71.43%

HWYROAD E 100-43100-325 Taxes $0.00 $39.00 $200.00 $161.00 19.50%

$3,920.51 $10,104.81 $31,700.00 $21,595.19 31.88%Dept 43100 Hwys, Streets, & Roads

Dept 43121 Paved Streets

PAVSTRTS E 100-43121-224 Street Maint Materials $365.00 $71,058.50 $16,000.00 -$55,058.50 444.12%

PAVSTRTS E 100-43121-226 Sign Repair Materials $0.00 $3,930.24 $7,000.00 $3,069.76 56.15%

$365.00 $74,988.74 $23,000.00 -$51,988.74 326.04%Dept 43121 Paved Streets

Dept 43122 Unpaved Streets

UNPAVSTS E 100-43122-224 Street Maint Materials $3,018.51 $3,678.51 $12,500.00 $8,821.49 29.43%

UNPAVSTS E 100-43122-226 Sign Repair Materials $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 $500.00 0.00%

$3,018.51 $3,678.51 $13,000.00 $9,321.49 28.30%Dept 43122 Unpaved Streets

Dept 43125 Ice & Snow Removal

SNOWREMO E 100-43125-224 Street Maint Materials $0.00 $15,999.93 $15,000.00 -$999.93 106.67%

$0.00 $15,999.93 $15,000.00 -$999.93 106.67%Dept 43125 Ice & Snow Removal

Dept 43160 Street Lighting

STLGHTG E 100-43160-381 Electric Utilities $2,073.51 $12,718.95 $30,000.00 $17,281.05 42.40%

$2,073.51 $12,718.95 $30,000.00 $17,281.05 42.40%Dept 43160 Street Lighting

Dept 43240 Waste (refuse) Disposal

REFDISPO E 100-43240-384 Refuse/Garbage Dispos -$955.00 $1,784.00 $1,000.00 -$784.00 178.40%

-$955.00 $1,784.00 $1,000.00 -$784.00 178.40%Dept 43240 Waste (refuse) Disposal

Dept 43245 Recycling: Refuse

RECYCLING E 100-43245-215 Shop Supplies $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

RECYCLING E 100-43245-384 Refuse/Garbage Dispos $3,033.20 $17,664.00 $28,000.00 $10,336.00 63.09%

$3,033.20 $17,664.00 $28,000.00 $10,336.00 63.09%Dept 43245 Recycling: Refuse

Dept 43260 Weed Control

WEEDCTRL E 100-43260-215 Shop Supplies $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

WEEDCTRL E 100-43260-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%Dept 43260 Weed Control

Dept 45186 Senior Center

SRCENTER E 100-45186-437 Other Miscellaneous $0.00 $1,457.02 $7,250.00 $5,792.98 20.10%

$0.00 $1,457.02 $7,250.00 $5,792.98 20.10%Dept 45186 Senior Center

Dept 45200 Parks (GENERAL)

PARKS E 100-45200-212 Motor Fuels $82.18 $82.18 $0.00 -$82.18 0.00%

PARKS E 100-45200-220 Repair/Maint Supply (G $247.08 $2,966.53 $5,000.00 $2,033.47 59.33%

PARKS E 100-45200-225 Landscaping Materials $460.27 $1,793.14 $3,300.00 $1,506.86 54.34%

PARKS E 100-45200-381 Electric Utilities $134.57 $972.34 $1,100.00 $127.66 88.39%

PARKS E 100-45200-400 Repairs & Maint Cont ( $266.52 $622.38 $6,000.00 $5,377.62 10.37%

PARKS E 100-45200-440 Programs/FYCC $0.00 $8,589.16 $5,300.00 -$3,289.16 162.06%

PARKS E 100-45200-441 Community Garden $179.49 $179.49 $4,500.00 $4,320.51 3.99%

PARKS E 100-45200-580 Other Equipment $580.97 $4,216.21 $2,500.00 -$1,716.21 168.65%

$1,951.08 $19,421.43 $27,700.00 $8,278.57 70.11%Dept 45200 Parks (GENERAL)

Dept 45500 Libraries (GENERAL)



Dept
Abbrev Account Descr

July
2015
Amt

2015
YTD Amt

2015 YTD
Budget

2015 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Page 6

07/17/15 11:28 AM

Expenditure Budget Report

HANOVER

LIBRARY E 100-45500-437 Other Miscellaneous $0.00 $1,750.00 $7,000.00 $5,250.00 25.00%

$0.00 $1,750.00 $7,000.00 $5,250.00 25.00%Dept 45500 Libraries (GENERAL)

Dept 48205 Damage Deposit Refunds

DMGDEPRF E 100-48205-810 Refunds & Reimbursem $2,800.00 $5,900.00 $5,000.00 -$900.00 118.00%

$2,800.00 $5,900.00 $5,000.00 -$900.00 118.00%Dept 48205 Damage Deposit Refunds

Dept 49360 Transfers Out

TRNSFERS E 100-49360-700 Transfers (GENERAL) $0.00 $0.00 $299,000.00 $299,000.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $299,000.00 $299,000.00 0.00%Dept 49360 Transfers Out

Dept 49800 Transit (GENERAL)

TRANSIT E 100-49800-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%Dept 49800 Transit (GENERAL)

$105,364.62 $710,128.25 $1,456,823.00 $746,694.75 48.75%Fund 100 GENERAL FUND



No. Mat. No. Item Units Qty
Estimated 
Unit Price

Estimated     
Total Price

SCHEDULE A - SURFACE IMPROVEMENTS
1 2021.501 MOBILIZATION LUMP SUM 1 $10,000.00 $10,000.00
2 2101.502 CLEARING TREE 6 $300.00 $1,800.00
3 2101.507 GRUBBING TREE 6 $300.00 $1,800.00
4 2104.503 REMOVE PIPE CULVERT LIN FT 490 $8.00 $3,920.00
5 2104.503 REMOVE CONCRETE WALK SQ FT 100 $2.00 $200.00
6 2104.505 REMOVE BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT SQ YD 1150 $3.50 $4,025.00
7 2104.513 SAWING BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT (FULL DEPTH) LIN FT 1300 $3.00 $3,900.00
8 2104.523 SALVAGE MAIL BOX SUPPORT EACH 3 $150.00 $450.00
9 2105.501 COMMON EXCAVATION (EV) CU YD 450 $15.00 $6,750.00

10 2105.522 SELECT GRANULAR BORROW (CV) CU YD 230 $12.00 $2,760.00
11 2105.525 TOPSOIL BORROW (CV) CU YD 525 $22.00 $11,550.00
12 2211.501 AGGREGATE BASE CLASS 5 TON 435 $18.00 $7,830.00
13 2350.501 TYPE SP 3 WEARING COURSE MIXTURE (C) TON 185 $120.00 $22,200.00
14 2357.502 BITUMINOUS MATERIAL FOR TACK COAT GALLON 30 $6.00 $180.00
15 2360.505 BITUMINOUS MIXTURE FOR DRIVEWAYS TON 85 $150.00 $12,750.00
16 2501.515 15" CS PIPE APRON EACH 14 $250.00 $3,500.00
17 2501.515 15" CS PIPE CULVERT LIN FT 490 $36.00 $17,640.00
18 2504.602 CONNECT TO EXISTING WATERMAIN EACH 2 $1,500.00 $3,000.00
19 2504.602 6" GATE VALVE AND BOX EACH 9 $1,800.00 $16,200.00
20 2504.602 8" GATE VALVE AND BOX EACH 3 $2,400.00 $7,200.00
21 2504.603 HYDRANT EACH 6 $4,800.00 $28,800.00
22 2504.603 6" WATER MAIN-DUCTILE IRON PIPE LIN FT 480 $34.00 $16,320.00
23 2504.603 8" WATER MAIN-DUCTILE IRON PIPE LIN FT 1920 $38.00 $72,960.00
24 2504.620 DUCTILE IRON FITTINGS-EPOXY COATED POUND 2750 $4.00 $11,000.00
25 2540.602 INSTALL MAIL BOX SUPPORT EACH 3 $125.00 $375.00
26 2563.601 TRAFFIC CONTROL LUMP SUM 1 $2,500.00 $2,500.00
27 2564.602 SALVAGE AND REINSTALL SIGN EACH 4 $110.00 $440.00
28 2571.501 CONIFEROUS TREE 12' HT B&B TREE 3 $700.00 $2,100.00
29 2571.502 DECIDUOUS TREE 2.5" CAL B&B TREE 3 $500.00 $1,500.00
30 2573.502 SILT FENCE, TYPE HEAVY DUTY LIN FT 120 $5.00 $600.00
31 2575.605 HYDROSEEDING (INCL. FERT & MULCH) ACRE 1.25 $5,000.00 $6,250.00

$280,500.00
$56,100.00

$336,600.00
$50,490.00

$330,990.00

SUBTOTAL
20% CONTINGENCY

SUBTOTAL
15% INDIRECT (ENGINEERING, ADMINISTRATIVE, LEGAL, ETC.)

TOTAL

ESTIMATED PROJECT COST
5th Street NE Watermain Extension Project

City Project No.
Project No. 2082-012

Hanover, MN
Monday, June 15, 2015



 
 
 
 
  engineering planning environmental construction 701 Xenia Avenue South 

 Suite 300 
 Minneapolis, MN 55416 
 Tel:  763-541-4800    
      Fax:  763-541-1700 
July 16, 2015 
 
 
Mr. Brian Hagen 
City of Hanover 
11250 – 5th Street NE 
Hanover, MN 55341 
 
 
Re: Request for Authorization to Provide Professional Services for Program 

Development and Implementation of the City’s newly authorized MS4 Permit 
 
 

Dear Mr. Hagen: 
 
The Minnesota Pollution Control Agency (MPCA) confirmed that the City of Hanover is a 
designated MS4 community as of February, 2015.  This letter is a scope of work for program 
development and implementation of the City of Hanover’s Municipal Separate Storm Sewer 
System (MS4) General Permit.  The City’s compliance requirements are mandated by the 
NPDES permit that was updated on August 1, 2013.   
 
WSB will work with City staff to develop a Stormwater Pollution Prevention Program (SWPPP) 
that meets the permit requirements of the MS4 permit, and assist staff with the initial 
implementation of the City of Hanover’s MS4 program. 
 
The following tasks are designed to ensure that the City achieves compliance with the new 
permit requirements.  Each task includes subtasks to define program management, development 
and implementation.  
 
Task 1: SWPPP Administrative Activities  
(Estimated Fee $1,900)  
 
1.1 Record Keeping & Tracking 
WSB will work with the City to identify mechanisms to successfully track and report MS4 
related activities that are occurring in the City. This will include integrating the use of the City’s 
existing programs to maintain organized and easy to access records of SWPPP activities to 
comply with permit requirements, aide in annual report writing, and assist with possible future 
MPCA audits. This will include the delivery an MS4 excel program that can be used document 
MS4 activities. 
  

 
St. Cloud   Minneapolis  St. Paul 

Equal Opportunity Employer 
 wsbeng.com  

 



Mr. Hagen 
July 16, 2015 
Page 2 
 
1.2 Partnerships with other MS4’s/Non-MS4’s 
WSB will prepare a draft partnership agreement between other MS4’s/Non-MS4’s for long-term 
operations and maintenance of municipal facilities, erosion and sediment control review and 
permitting, and post-construction stormwater management review and permitting. WSB will also 
meet with the City’s MS4 Administrator to identify, evaluate, and pursue (if applicable) other 
potential partnerships with outside organizations to aide in fulfilling SWPPP components. 
 
1.3 Administrative Meeting 
WSB will work with the City’s MS4 Administrator to schedule two 1-2 hour meetings with 
responsible City staff. Program components, specific responsible task per staff member, and 
reporting/record keeping requirements will be discussed.  The first “kick-off” meeting will occur 
after the draft completion of certain subtasks in Tasks 2-6. The second “SWPPP 
Implementation” meeting will occur after finalizing the deliverables in Tasks 1-6. 
 
1.4 Staff Training  
Development of a comprehensive training program is critical to the foundation of any MS4 
program. It is important to communicate to all City staff how their role may be impacting 
stormwater pollution. WSB will complete one annual training session for Public Works, 
Engineering and Building Inspections staff and provide digital and written training programs for 
make up or seasonal employees commensurate with the requirements of the MS4 Permit. 
 
Task 2: Regulatory Mechanisms and Enforcement Response Procedures 
(Estimated Fee $1,600) 
 
2.1 Illicit Discharge Detection & Elimination, Construction Site Stormwater Runoff 
Control and Post-Construction Ordinances  
Hanover’s City Code was assessed during the development of this proposal. The City does have 
an established stormwater management ordinance that includes requirements for: 

• Illicit Discharge Detection, and Elimination 
• Construction Site Stormwater Runoff Control 
• Post-Construction Stormwater Management 

 
A review of those ordinances shows that there are minor changes that will need to be integrated 
to meet the requirements of the new MS4 permit. This scope includes providing revised 
ordinance language to be reviewed by the City Attorney and approved by City Council. This task 
does not include WSB staff attendance or written responses to questions received at City Council 
meetings. 
 
2.2 Enforcement Response Procedures   
WSB will develop Enforcement Response Procedures (ERPs) that will describe internal staff 
procedures for non-compliance to the standards, policies, and ordinances related to illicit 
discharge detection and elimination, construction site erosion and sediment control, and post-
construction stormwater management requirements. 
 
 



Mr. Hagen 
July 16, 2015 
Page 3 
 
2.4 Long Term Operation and Maintenance 
This task will include providing recommendations for how existing ordinances, policies, and 
Hanover’s maintenance agreement may need to be modified to allow the City to conduct 
inspections, perform maintenance, and assess costs to maintain structural stormwater BMPs for 
private systems constructed throughout the City (e.g., commercial properties, industrial facilities, 
etc.). 
 
Task 3. Public Education & Participation Program 
(Estimated Fee $800)  
 
3.1 Prioritize Education 
This activity will include reviewing the current education program and providing 
recommendations, such as focusing on high priority stormwater related issues to be emphasized 
for education and outreach during the permit term (e.g. specific TMDL reduction targets & BMP 
activities, promoting adoption of the residential BMPs, City webpage updates, public 
participation events, etc.). 
 
3.2 Annual SWPPP Assessment & Public Meeting  
WSB will outline procedures for the City’s MS4 Administrator to utilize when conducting the 
annual SWPPP assessment and in preparation of the annual public meeting. WSB staff will 
prepare the year one annual report and assist City staff with the public meeting.  
 
Task 4: Illicit Discharge Detection & Elimination Program  
(Estimated Fee $1,200) 
 
4.1 Illicit Discharge Detection & Elimination (IDDE) Program Manual 
The City’s existing IDDE program components will be reviewed and updated to include written 
internal procedures for emergency and non-emergency response to reported spills, illicit 
discharges, and connections. This task includes compiling all IDDE program components into a 
new IDDE program manual that can serve as the City’s MS4 Administrators reference and 
reporting document for all of the City’s IDDE related activities. 
 
4.2 Illicit Discharge Detection & Elimination (IDDE) Map 
WSB will prepare an inspection map of high priority areas that may contain the potential of 
increased illicit discharges based on current landuse/zoning, history of reported discharges/spills, 
and active NPDES Industrial Stormwater Permits.  
 
Task 5. Stormwater Runoff Control Program  
(Estimated Fee $700) 
 
5.1 Construction and Post-Construction Operating Procedures 
WSB staff will review the City’s existing construction site and post-construction stormwater 
management program components for needed updates to meet new MS4 permit requirements. 
Program updates identified in the City’s Application for Reauthorization include drafting written 
internal procedures for identifying priority constriction sites for inspection, revising plan review 



Mr. Hagen 
July 16, 2015 
Page 4 
 
and inspection checklists to meet new NPDES Construction Storm Water Permit requirements, 
and updating City inspection forms. 
 
Task 6: Public Works MS4 Program  
(Estimated Fee $3,100) 
 
MS4 permit requirements are handled through responsible staff and operations within the Public 
Works and Engineering Departments. The goal of this task is to identify each MS4 activity, 
define responsible staff, and set-up appropriate reporting procedures to ensure that all MS4 
activities are recorded. 
 
6.1 Public Works MS4 Manual 
This task includes compiling all Public Works responsible program components into a one 
Public Works MS4 Program manual that can serve as the City’s MS4 Administrators reference 
and reporting document for all of the City’s Public Works Department related MS4 activities. 
Specific program components that will be reviewed by WSB staff and updated (if needed) 
include: 
 

• Written procedures for conducting and reporting street sweeping operations, outfall, 
pond, structural stormwater BMP, and quarterly facility inspections.  

• Record keeping practices and methodologies for inspection reporting, determining 
maintenance, repair, replacement of MS4 stormsewer components. 

• Draft a staff training program that would identify training opportunities, 
certifications, annual schedules, and record keeping. This training program would be 
used annually by City staff to schedule, conduct and/or host staff training for all MS4 
responsible Public Works staff. 

 
6.2 Pond Inventory 
This will include evaluating existing City maps and providing updates to the City’s pond 
inventory and map system to comply with the requirements of the NPDES MS4 permit.  This 
also includes the forms and documents required for submittal. 
 
6.3 Facilities Inventory   
The Facilities Inventory will be conducted and include: meeting with Public Works staff to 
gather and compile existing relevant information, complete one facility inspection of each City 
owned and operated facility, and develop a GIS inventory of all municipally owned/operated 
facilities. This inventory will include facility maps and a list of all potential stormwater pollution 
generating activities and material(s) being stored on-site, along with BMPs designed to prevent 
discharges of pollutants resulting in contact with stormwater. 
 
6.4 Sediment Removal Projects 
WSB will develop a reporting component for pond sediment removal projects, as required by the 
MS4 permit. Reporting procedures will be used by City staff to document sediment removal 
projects from City owned and operated stormwater ponds during the 5-year MS4 permit cycle. 
 



Mr. Hagen 
July 16, 2015 
Page 5 
 
6.5 Pond Assessment Procedures 
The new MS4 permit (Part III.D.6.d) requires MS4 communities to develop procedures and a 
schedule to determine the Total Phosphorus and Total Suspended Solids treatment effectiveness 
of all City-owned and operated ponds. WSB will define an evaluation method, draft procedures, 
and schedule for the City to use in meeting this permit requirement. Pond assessments will be 
completed by City staff. 
 
Task 7: Additional Services 
(Estimated Fee TBD) 
 
7.1 Storm Sewer & Pond Inspection Services   
WSB will provide a staff member to conduct inspections of 20% to 100% of the City owned 
MS4 outfalls and ponds during Year 1 and 2, and 100% of the structural stormwater BMPs (i.e.  
Sump manholes or other water quality structures) during Year 1. This minimum 20% pond 
inspection schedule will allow the City to meet the requirement to inspect all ponds by the end of 
the 5 year permit cycle.  Inspections will be documented in accordance with procedures 
established in Task 7. The associated cost of this task will depend on the number of pond 
inspections the City would like WSB to complete. 
 
7.2 Comprehensive Pond Assessment Program  
WSB’s Stormwater Asset Management Program (SWAMP) is a web application that was 
specifically designed to assist with assessing, scheduling, and budgeting inspection and 
maintenance activities.  It can be used to help to meet the following MS4 permit requirements 
(MCM –Minimum control Measure): 
 

• Pond Assessment Procedures (MCM 6) - Evaluate the TSS and TP treatment 
effectiveness of MS4 owned/operated ponds within the City. 

• Inspections (MCM 6) - Assist with prioritizing inspections to determine proper 
function and maintenance needs for ponds. 

• Maintenance (MCM 6) - Assist with forecasting maintenance requirements to allow 
for budgeting of future maintenance activities 

• Long-term maintenance of structural BMPs (MCM 5) – Assist with prioritizing 
maintenance of both public and private BMPs. 

 
WSB will utilize the existing pond inventory, delineated drainage areas, and land use maps to 
launch a customized version of SWAMP for Hanover. An annual software subscription cost 
(following Year 1) will provide the City access to the web application, cloud server storage of 
City’s program, and application maintenance/updates.  A detailed work plan for the SWAMP is 
available upon request. 
 
  



Mr. Hagen 
July 16, 2015 
Page 6 
 
Cost 
This proposal represents our complete understanding of the MS4 regulatory program and the 
work needed to complete the tasks associated with the MS4 program. The total cost for Tasks 1 
through 6 described above is $9,300.  
 
We appreciate the opportunity to share this proposal with you, and look forward to working with 
the City of Hanover efficiently bring your MS4 Program into compliance. If you are in 
agreement with the scope of services and proposed fee, please sign in the appropriate space 
below and return one copy to us. Should you have any questions about this proposal, please 
contact me at 651-286-84684 or gbeckius@wsbeng.com. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
WSB & Associates, Inc.  
 

 
 
Greg Beckius 
Environmental Scientist – Environmental Compliance Group 
 
 
 
ACCEPTED BY: 
 
City of Hanover 
I hereby authorize WSB & Associates, Inc. to complete Tasks 1 through 6 identified above 
for an hourly not to exceed cost of $9,300.  
 
Name        
 
Signature        
 
Date        

mailto:gbeckius@wsbeng.com


CITY OF HANOVER 
COUNTIES OF WRIGHT AND HENNEPIN 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 
 

A regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Hanover, Minnesota, was called to order by Mayor 
Kauffman at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers of the City Hall, in the City of Hanover, Minnesota, on the 
21st day of July, 2015.   
 
The following Council Members were present:  Kauffman, Vajda, Hammerseng, Warpula, Zajicek 
 
The following Council Members were absent:  None.   
 
A motion to adopt the following resolution was made by ________ and seconded by ___________. 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO 07-21-15-42 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING PROPOSAL FROM ABDO, EICK, & MEYERS, LLP. 

FOR TRAINING AND 2015 AUDIT PREPARATION 
 
WHEREAS, the City has hired an Accountant/Deputy Clerk; and 
 
WHEREAS, a training period and assistance with the 2015 audit has been recommended; and 
 
WHEREAS, Abdo, Eick, & Meyers, LLP has submitted a proposal to complete these services. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Hanover, Minnesota, hereby 
approves the proposal as attached to provide training services and 2015 audit preparation. 
  
 
 
Council members voting in favor:  Kauffman, Vajda, Hammerseng, Warpula, Zajicek 
 
Opposed or abstained:  None 
 
Adopted by the city Council this 21st day of July, 2015. 
 

APPROVED BY: 
 
 
       ___________________________________ 
       Chris Kauffman, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Brian Hagen, City Administrator 



 
 
 
 
 

   
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

July 15, 2015 

Proposal for Consulting Services 
 
Mr. Brian Hagen 
City of Hanover 
11250 5th Street NE 
Hanover, Minnesota 55341 
 
Dear Mr. Hagen, 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to submit this proposal to the City of Hanover (the City) for Training and Audit Preparation services.  
In order to document the understanding between us as to the scope of the work that AEM Financial Solutions, LLC (AEMFS) will 
perform, we are entering into this agreement with the City of Hanover.  This agreement defines the services we will perform for you 
as well as your responsibilities under the agreement.  
 
Executive Summary 
 
AEM Financial Solutions, LLC (AEMFS) is pleased to offer this proposal to the City of Hanover for Training and Audit Preparation 
services.   
 
The Scope of Services to be provided includes the following: 
 

• Provide training for the Accountant on governmental accounting, software and audit preparation 
• Prepare work papers and gather support for the annual audit of the financial statements 
• Prepare the Management Discussion and Analysis for the audit report 
• Participate in responding to auditor inquiries during field work 

 
The goal of this compilation is to provide training for the newly hired Accountant and assist in preparing the City for the annual audit.  
Services will be conducted by on-site visits and interviews, phone conversations and information provided by the City to AEMFS. 
 
Our solution will provide excellent financial accounting services and tap into the best practices we have developed over the past 
50 years we have been in business.  Our proposal is based on similar services we provide to other cities of relative size.   
 
An AEMFS representative will be in the City offices as necessary to perform responsibilities as noted in the Scope of Services page. 
Services will also be performed remotely as necessary. 
 
The preparation will begin in early July and continue through the annual audit which is to be determined prior to June 30, 2016. 
 
Investment by the City for services is indicated in the financial page. 
 
AEMFS would like to thank the City for the opportunity. We look forward to exceeding your expectations and continuing with a long-
term, mutually beneficial relationship. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
AEM Financial Solutions, LLC 
an Abdo, Eick & Meyers, LLP Company 

  
Steven R. McDonald, CPA Jean D. McGann, CPA 
CEO  President  



City of Hanover 
July 15, 2015 

Page 2 
 

 

Planned Time
City Responsibility Frame

1. Training
Provide training for the Accountant per the proposed schedule 
(attached) Provide dedicated time for training

7/1/2015 - 
12/31/2015

  Accounting transaction process
   Accounting procedures

  Software processes and input procedures
  Quarterly reports and year end processes
  Transactional coding by budget allocation
  Financial statement analysis
  Budget process and allocations
  Financial deadlines/requirements on annual basis

2. Audit Preparation
Provide training for Accountant throughout the Audit Preparation 
process, including review of work papers prepared by Accountant

Cooperation in location supporting 
documentation as needed

1/1/2016 - 
6/30/2016

Prepare work papers and gather support for the annual audit of the 
financial statements

Cooperation in location supporting 
documentation as needed

1/1/2016 - 
6/30/2016

Prepare the Management Discussion and Analysis for the audit report
City Administrator to review and 
approve

1/1/2016 - 
6/30/2016

Provide assistance during audit fieldwork City to provide fieldwork dates
1/1/2016 - 
6/30/2016

Contract Task

Scope of Services

 
Unanticipated services 
 
While this agreement entitles the City to unlimited consultation with us, if your question or issue requires additional research and 
analysis beyond the consultation, the work will be subject to an additional price, payment terms, and scope to be agreed upon before 
the service is performed and a change order will be issued to document this understanding.  
 
Furthermore the parties agree that if an unanticipated need arises (training to different groups, researching a new issue, etc.) we hereby 
agree to perform this additional work at a mutually agreed upon price. This service will be priced separately to the City, using a 
change order.  
 
Service Guarantee 
 
Our work is guaranteed to the complete satisfaction of the customer. If you are not completely satisfied with the services performed by 
AEMFS, we will, at the option of the City, either refund the price or accept a portion of said price that reflects the City’s level of value 
received. Upon payment of each of your scheduled payments, we will judge you have been satisfied.  
 
Price Guarantee 
 
Furthermore, if you ever receive an invoice without first authorizing the service, payment terms, and price, you are not obligated to 
pay for that service.  
  



City of Hanover 
July 15, 2015 

Page 3 
 

 

City Financial Investment 
 

Services Period  Fee   Monthly  
 
Finance and software training for Accountant  
July 1, 2015 - December 31, 2015  Hourly As incurred * 
Audit Preparation 
January 1, 2016 – December 31, 2016  Hourly As incurred * 

 
Payment Schedule 
 
* Training to be invoiced as incurred based on an hourly rate of either $125 or $165 depending on the type of training requested.  
AEMFS will identify hourly rate prior to specific training. 
 
*Audit preparation and related training will be invoiced as incurred based on an hourly rate of either $125 or $165 depending on the 
type of training and service requested.   
 
 
 

City of Hanover 
11250 5th Street NE 

Hanover, Minnesota 55341 
 
 
Name    
   
Title  Mayor   
 
Date    
 
 
  
Name    
   
Title  Administrator   
 
Date    
 
 
 

AEM Financial Solutions, LLC 
5201 Eden Ave. Suite 250 
Edina, Minnesota 55436 

 
 
 
Name    
 
 
Title  CEO  
 
 
Date  July 15, 2015  



Proposed Training Schedule

Trainer

1 General Accounting Trainee Trainer Rate Proposed Date Estimated Length

a Financial Statements Liz Vicki

b Support and internal controls (general discussion of all sections) Liz Vicki

c Accounting periods Liz Vicki

d Transaction dates Liz Vicki

e Closing periods Liz Vicki

f Cash flows (general) Liz VIcki

2 Budget

a Budget process Liz Vicki

b   Budget entry Liz Vicki

c Budget amendments Liz Vicki

d Support and internal controls Liz Vicki

e Budget reports Liz Vicki

f Wage and benefit budgeting Liz Vicki

3 Transfers

a Support and internal controls Liz Vicki

b Accounting transfers Liz Vicki

c Cash transfers Liz Vicki

4 Journal entries

a Support and internal controls Liz Vicki

b Debits and credits Liz Vicki

c Posting entries Liz Vicki

d Balancing entries Liz Vicki

5 Cash & Investments

a Support and internal controls Liz Katelyn

b Investment schedule Liz Katelyn

c   Cash reconciliation Liz Katelyn

d Interest & fair market value allocations Liz Katelyn

e Unclaimed property Liz Katelyn

6 *Accounts Payable

a  Support and internal controls Liz Katelyn

b Coding Liz Katelyn

c Capital items Liz Katelyn

d Sales & Use Tax Liz Katelyn

e Refunds Liz Katelyn

f Year‐end procedures Liz Katelyn

7 *Accounts Receivable

a  Support and internal controls Liz Katelyn

b Coding Liz Katelyn

c Sales & Use Tax Liz Katelyn

d Refunds Liz Katelyn

e Year‐end procedures Liz Katelyn

8 *Payroll

a Support and internal controls Liz Katelyn

b Deductions and benefits Liz Katelyn

c Taxes Liz Katelyn

d Proofing payroll Liz Katelyn

e Allocations Liz Katelyn

f Reconciling payroll liabilities Liz Katelyn

g Payroll Tax Returns Liz Katelyn

This section is 

estimated to take 1‐2 

hours to cover.

This section is 

estimated to take 2‐3 

hours to cover.

This section is 

estimated to take 3‐4 

hours to cover.

July 29th, 2015

July 29th, 2015

July 29th, 2015

This section is 

estimated to take 2‐3 

hours to cover.

This section is 

estimated to take 1‐2 

hours to cover.

July 22, 2015

July 22nd, 2015

July 22nd, 2015

July 22nd, 2015

July 29th, 2015

This section is 

estimated to take 2‐3 

hours to cover.

This section is 

estimated to take 1 

hour to cover.

This section is 

estimated to take 3‐5 

hours to cover.

$165/hr

$165/hr

$165/hr

$165/hr

$125/hr

$125/hr

$125/hr

$125/hr



9 Financial Analysis & Reporting

a Report Writer functionality Liz Katelyn

b Quarterly reports Liz Katelyn

10 Other Reporting

a Reporting Calendar (legal compliance, funding agency reqs, etc.) Liz Vicki

b General review of reporting requirements Liz Vicki

11 CIP, LT Plan and Cash flows

a Capital Improvements Plan Liz Vicki

b Long‐term Planning Liz Vicki

c Cash flows Liz Vicki

12 Audit Preparation (separate proposal) Liz Vicki/Katelyn

a Work papers Liz Vicki/Katelyn

b Support Liz Vicki/Katelyn

c Closing entries Liz Vicki/Katelyn

d Reversing entries Liz Vicki/Katelyn

* Hours under our typical schedule have been adjusted to account for training that will be conducted in‐house.

July 29th, 2015

This section is 

estimated to take 1‐2 

hours to cover.

October ‐ 

November

October ‐ 

November

January ‐ March

This section is 

estimated to take 40‐

68 hours to cover.  

This section is 

estimated to take 4‐5 

hours to cover.

This section is 

estimated to take 1‐2 

hours to cover.

$165/hr

$125/hr 

(Katelyn) 

or $165/hr 

(Vicki)

$125/hr

$165/hr



Account Description Category 2010 Actual 2011 Actual 2012 Actual 2013 Actual
2014 Actual 

7/31/14 2014 Budget
% of 

Budget 2015 Budget
%  

Change
2015 Budget 
Amdend #1

Revenue Accounts
100-31000 Property Taxes - City TAXES 949,730 947,465 957,722 981,814 363,861 966,726 995,728 995,728
100-31020 Property Taxes - Fire Dept TAXES 93,603 94,892 96,217 95,882 36,885 99,864 31,790 31,790
100-31800 Franchise Fees TAXES 9,577 10,334 8,096 14,452 3,036 10,000 10,000 10,000

TOTAL TAXES 1,052,909 1,052,691 1,062,035 1,092,148 403,781 1,076,590 38% 1,037,518 -4% 1,037,518

100-32110 Alcoholic Beverages LIC PERM 10,270 10,295 10,387 10,305 10,370 10,300 10,300 10,300
100-32180 Other Bus. Lic. & Permits LIC PERM 100 568 650 1,561 225 0 100 100
100-32210 Building Permits LIC PERM 39,857 47,327 77,849 190,003 76,897 65,000 70,000 100,000
100-32240 Animal Licenses LIC PERM 175 230 240 340 60 200 100 100
100-32260 Solid Waste Hauler Licenses LIC PERM 1,200 1,600 400 3,000 0 1,200 1,500 1,500
100-32270 Rental Dwelling Licenses LIC PERM 225 125 1,105 0 0 0 300 300
100-32280 Other Non-Bus. Lic. & Permits LIC PERM 45 36 374 74 16 50 50 50

TOTAL LIC PERM 51,872 60,181 91,005 205,283 87,568 76,750 114% 82,350 7% 112,350

100-33400 State Grants and Aid INTGOVT 0 0 0 0 350 0 0 0
100-33401 Local Gov't Aid (LGA) INTGOVT 63,204 63,614 63,203 63,203 0 100,494 105,859 105,859
100-33410 MV Credit INTGOVT 1,579 1,475 0 0 0 0 0 0
100-33420 PERA Aid INTGOVT 339 339 339 339 0 339 339 339
100-33422 State Fire Aid INTGOVT 21,786 24,422 24,521 34,204 3,000 24,000 24,000 24,000
100-33426 State Police Aid INTGOVT 4,681 4,668 4,542 5,057 0 4,600 4,600 4,600
100-33610 County Grants/Aid for Roads INTGOVT 0 0 0 0 1,188 0 1,500 1,500

TOTAL INTGOVT 91,589 94,517 92,605 102,803 4,538 129,433 4% 136,298 5% 136,298

100-34101 City Hall Rentals SERVICE 6,120 4,758 5,050 4,800 4,470 6,000 5,000 5,000
100-34105 Sales of Maps & Publications SERVICE 6 3 9 0 0 0 0 0
100-34107 Assessment Searches SERVICE 225 175 375 725 275 300 300 300
100-34108 Administrative Fees SERVICE 2,367 2,675 1,346 1,402 1,525 2,000 2,000 2,000
100-34109 Copies/Faxes SERVICE 61 60 104 76 72 60 80 80
100-34207 Fire Protection SERVICE 100,812 102,116 102,210 102,210 35,880 105,399 106,964 106,964
100-34403 Recycling Rev/Reimb SERVICE 6,034 5,246 3,494 8,264 1,995 5,000 6,000 6,000
100-34780 Park Shelter Rental Fees SERVICE 2,000 1,825 2,571 2,351 2,479 1,800 2,000 2,000
100-34940 Cemetery Revenues SERVICE 3,000 2,500 2,000 0 1,650 1,500 2,000 2,000

TOTAL SERVICE 120,624 119,356 117,159 119,827 48,346 122,059 40% 124,344 2% 124,344

100-35100 Court Fines FINES 4,385 4,298 861 1,420 480 2,000 1,500 1,500
TOTAL FINES 4,385 4,298 861 1,420 480 2,000 24% 1,500 -25% 1,500

100-36100 Special Assessments MISC 5,908 400 0 951 27 0 0 0
100-36200 Misc Revenues MISC    7,042 9,009 5,355 67,479 1,496 0 0 0
100-36210 Interest Earnings MISC 13,996 13,708 9,074 4,476 (1,043) 8,000 1,000 1,000
100-36215 Investment Income/Loss MISC 0 0 0 0 6,222 0 7,000 7,000
100-36218 Grants MISC 2,377 1,000 2,799 1,205 0 0 0 0
100-36230 Contributions & Donations MISC 2,450 5,500 5,096 2,742 2,075 0 0 0
100-36235 Insurance Dividends MISC 4,800 5,976 10,241 7,094 0 5,000 6,000 6,000
100-36250 Damage Deposits MISC 6,350 5,700 6,934 6,291 5,641 6,000 7,000 7,000
100-36291 Sale of Vehicles/Equipment MISC 0 0 3,300 1,300 100 0 0 0
100-39203 Transfers from Other Funds MISC 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL MISC 42,923 41,294 42,798 91,538 14,517 19,000 76% 21,000 11% 21,000

TOTAL REVENUE 1,364,303 1,372,337 1,406,462 1,613,019 559,231 1,425,832 39% 1,403,010 -1.6% 1,433,010

City of Hanover
Budget 2015



2015-Amend 1 2015-Amend 1

Account Description 2011 Actual 2012 Actual 2013 Actual
2014 Actual 

7/31/14 2014 Budget
% of 

Budget 2015 Budget
2015 Amend 

#1 % Change Dollar Change Reason for Change

Expenditure Accounts

General Government
100-41110-111 COUNCIL: COMMITTEE WAGES 11,680 12,786 12,176 8,012 13,650 59% 13,700 10,500 -23% (3,200) Actual costs less that orginal estimate
100-41110-122 COUNCIL: FICA 724 793 755 65 850 8% 849 651 -23% (198) Due to wage decrease
100-41110-123 COUNCIL: MEDICARE 169 185 177 15 200 8% 199 152 -23% (46) Due to wage decrease
100-41110-150 COUNCIL: WORKERS COMP PREM 44 44 48 119 50 239% 150 100 -33% (50) Adjusted to better reflect actual
100-41110-208 COUNCIL: TRAINING & INSTRUCTION 992 1,109 398 0 1,600 0% 1,500 450 -70% (1,050) Historically have only used under $400
100-41110-306 COUNCIL: DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 1,520 2,552 670 2,328 1,650 141% 2,500 7,000 180% 4,500 Increased to reflect coding of Mayor's Assct., Small Cities Assct. Etc.
100-41110-331 COUNCIL: TRAVEL EXPENSES 1,080 801 158 0 2,000 0% 2,000 1,000 -50% (1,000) Historically have only used around $1000
100-41110-437 COUNCIL: DISCRETIONARY MISC 3,486 3,396 3,586 2,756 7,000 39% 5,000 5,000 0% 0

Total Council 19,696 21,667 17,967 13,295 27,000 49% 25,898 24,853 -4% (1,045)
100-41330-111 BRDS & COMM: COMMITTEE WAGES 3,300 2,850 2,280 0 5,200 0% 5,500 5,500 0% 0
100-41330-150 BRDS & COMM: WORKERS COMP PREM 180 #DIV/0! 180 Was not in past budget
100-41330-160 BRDS & COMM: LIAB INSUR PREMIUM 0 0 0 0 350 0% 100 100 0% 0
100-41330-208 BRDS & COMM: TRAINING & INSTRUC 0 110 0 0 150 0% 150 150 0% 0
100-41330-331 BRDS & COMM: TRAVEL EXPENSES 0 0 374 0 100 0% 100 100 0% 0

Total Brds & Comm 3,300 2,960 2,654 0 5,800 0% 5,850 6,030 3% 180
100-41400-101 CITY ADMIN: FULL-TIME WAGES 80,829 72,582 12,433 33,231 63,000 53% 65,500 72,588 11% 7,088 City Admin wages and sick/vacation payout of previous City Admin
100-41400-121 CITY ADMIN: PERA 5,856 4,377 0 2,621 3,906 67% 4,900 5,400 10% 500
100-41400-122 CITY ADMIN: FICA 4,830 4,278 590 2,242 3,906 57% 4,100 4,500 10% 400
100-41400-123 CITY ADMIN: MEDICARE 1,130 1,001 138 524 945 55% 900 1,100 22% 200
100-41400-132 CITY ADMIN: EMPLOYER PAID HSA. 3,360 #DIV/0! 3,360 Was all in Health Ins. Prem budget in past
100-41400-134 CITY ADMIN: EMPLOYER PAID Life 360 #DIV/0! 360 Was all in Health Ins. Prem budget in past
100-41400-150 CITY ADMIN: WORKERS COMP PREM 0 350 #DIV/0! 350
100-41400-151 CITY ADMIN: HEALTH INSUR PREM 9,135 6,238 0 4,667 7,200 65% 10,890 3,600 -67% (7,290) Split out to detailed areas of Health ins
100-41400-208 CITY ADMIN: TRAINING & INSTRUC 250 465 464 211 750 28% 1,000 1,000 0% 0
100-41400-306 CITY ADMIN: DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 500 #DIV/0! 500 Was $500 in 2014 budget
100-41400-310 CITYADMIN: OTHER PROF SVCS 0 27,467 44,317 292 19,875 1% 0 0 #DIV/0! 0

Total City Admin 102,030 116,408 57,941 43,788 99,582 44% 87,290 92,758 6% 5,468
100-41410-200 ELECT: OFFICE SUPPLIES 0 1,162 0 892 1,200 74% 0 0 #DIV/0! 0
100-41410-310 ELECT: OTHER PROF SVCS 0 3,660 0 1,575 4,000 39% 0 0 #DIV/0! 0
100-41410-351 ELECT: LEGAL NOTICES PUBLISHING 0 0 0 59 250 24% 250 0 -100% (250) No Elections this year
100-41410-400 ELECT: REPAIRS & MAINT CONTR 751 0 762 0 1,000 0% 1,000 1,000 0% 0

Total Elect 751 4,822 762 2,526 6,450 39% 1,250 1,000 -20% (250)
100-41430-101 CLERICAL: FULL-TIME WAGES 37,550 39,200 43,120 40,600 33,072 123% 82,600 54,043 -35% (28,557) Nancy actuals through May, Amy 2015 wages
100-41430-103 CLERICAL: PART-TIME WAGES 1,005 0 2,400 1,000 240% 5,000 0 -100% (5,000) No Part time employee
100-41430-121 CLERICAL: PERA 2,788 2,827 1,832 3,215 2,050 157% 6,200 4,100 -34% (2,100) Decrease due to wage decrease
100-41430-122 CLERICAL: FICA 2,384 2,417 2,544 2,898 2,050 141% 5,100 3,400 -33% (1,700) Decrease due to wage decrease
100-41430-123 CLERICAL: MEDICARE 558 565 595 678 496 137% 1,200 800 -33% (400) Decrease due to wage decrease
100-41430-132 CLERICAL: EMPLOYER PAID HSA. 0 2,580 #DIV/0! 2,580 Was all in Health Ins. Prem budget in past
100-41430-134 CLERICAL: MEDICARE EMPLOYER PAID LIFE 0 700 #DIV/0! 700 Was all in Health Ins. Prem budget in past
100-41430-142 CLERICAL: UNEMPLOYEMENT BENEFIT 0 1,428 #DIV/0! 1,428
100-41430-150 CLERICAL: WORKERS COMP PREM 0 250 #DIV/0! 250 Was not in past budget
100-41430-151 CLERICAL: INSURANCE PREMIUM 8,984 8,946 17,319 7,782 7,200 108% 16,932 5,412 -68% (11,520) Split out to detailed areas of Health ins

Total Clerical 53,269 53,956 65,410 57,573 45,868 126% 117,032 72,713 -38% (44,319)
100-41435-208 STAFF: TRAINING & INSTRUCTION 1,745 494 920 0 2,000 0% 1,500 1,500 0% 0

City of Hanover
Budget 2015



100-41435-260 STAFF: UNIFORMS 0 80 0 0 450 0% 300 300 0% 0
100-41435-306 STAFF: DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 5,537 5,625 6,967 2,324 8,000 29% 4,000 300 -93% (3,700) Historically have spent under $200

100-41435-310 STAFF: OTHER PROF SVCS 0 9,845 5,763 557 1,000 56% 1,000 1,000 0% 0
100-41435-331 STAFF: TRAVEL EXPENSES 1,539 1,101 368 245 2,000 12% 1,500 1,500 0% 0

Total Staff 8,821 17,144 14,017 3,126 13,450 23% 8,300 4,600 -45% (3,700)
100-41530-101 ACCNT: FULL-TIME WAGES 59,367 59,281 78,673 0 47,700 0% 0 24,960 #DIV/0! 24,960 Liz - start date of July
100-41530-121 ACCNT: PERA 4,301 3,464 5,869 0 2,957 0% 0 1,900 #DIV/0! 1,900
100-41530-122 ACCNT: FICA 3,678 3,676 5,019 0 2,957 0% 0 1,500 #DIV/0! 1,500
100-41530-123 ACCNT: MEDICARE 860 860 1,174 0 716 0% 0 400 #DIV/0! 400
100-41530-150 ACCNT: WORKERS COMP PREM 350 #DIV/0! 350 Was not in past budget
100-41530-151 ACCNT: INSURANCE PREMIUM 8,481 6,021 9,149 0 7,200 0% 0 2,000 #DIV/0! 2,000 Was not in past budget
100-41530-310 ACCNT: OTHER PROF SVCS 38,500 #DIV/0! 38,500 AEM fees for first half of year, plus training costs

Total Accnt 76,687 73,301 99,885 0 61,530 0% 0 69,610 #DIV/0! 69,610
100-41540-301 AUDITING: AUDITING & ACCOUNTING 19,075 19,840 22,740 27,392 25,000 110% 26,000 27,000 4% 1,000

Total Auditing & Accounting 19,075 19,840 22,740 27,392 25,000 110% 26,000 27,000 4% 1,000
100-41550-310 ASSESSING: OTHER PROF SVCS 16,378 16,316 16,889 11,551 16,416 70% 17,600 17,600 0% 0

Total Assesing 16,378 16,316 16,889 11,551 16,416 70% 17,600 17,600 0% 0

100-41570-200 PURCH: OFFICE SUPPLIES 2,898 6,172 5,587 1,017 5,500 18% 5,500 4,900 -11% (600)
100-41570-205 PURCH: BANK FEES 159 212 124 12 100 12% 100 100 0% 0
100-41570-207 PURCH: COMPUTER SUPPLIES 1,425 1,268 4,472 3,784 2,000 189% 3,000 2,500 -17% (500)
100-41570-220 PURCH: REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE 4,728 6,724 8,425 2,022 6,800 30% 6,800 6,800 0% 0
100-41570-322 PURCH: POSTAGE 2,049 1,222 458 399 1,500 27% 1,500 1,500 0% 0

100-41570-570 PURCH: OFFICE EQUIP/FURNISH 2,599 2,501 1,305 120 4,000 3% 4,000 4,000 0% 0
Total Purch 13,859 18,099 20,370 7,354 19,900 37% 20,900 19,800 -5% (1,100)

100-41600-220 COMPUTER:  Repair/Maint Supply 0 4,500 #DIV/0! 4,500 $120/hr, 3-4 hrs per month
Total Computer 0 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0! 0 4,500 #DIV/0! 4,500

100-41610-304 ATTORNEY: LEGAL FEES 21,767 13,799 19,286 8,660 26,500 33% 27,295 27,295 0% 0
Total Attorney 21,767 13,799 19,286 8,660 26,500 33% 27,295 27,295 0% 0

100-41910-310 PLANNING & ZONING: OTH PROF SVCS 22,022 11,489 24,092 14,069 15,000 94% 17,000 17,000 0% 0
Total Planning & Zoning 22,022 11,489 24,092 14,069 15,000 94% 17,000 17,000 0% 0

100-41940-101 BLDG/GRDS: FULL-TIME WAGES 43,783 46,834 34,845 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0! 0
100-41940-121 BLDG/GRDS: PERA 3,174 3,382 755 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0! 0
100-41940-122 BLDG/GRDS: FICA 2,820 2,893 2,283 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0! 0
100-41940-123 BLDG/GRDS: MEDICARE 659 677 534 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0! 0
100-41940-150 BLDG/GRDS: WORKERS COMP 1,478 1,664 1,649 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0! 0
100-41940-151 BLDG/GRDS: INSURANCE PREMIUM 8,447 8,420 7,924 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0! 0
100-41940-210 BLDG/GRDS: OPERATING SUPPLIES 3,579 3,484 4,454 654 5,000 13% 5,000 5,000 0% 0
100-41940-220 BLDG/GRDS: REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLY 7,109 4,943 10,195 (4,993) 10,000 -50% 10,000 10,000 0% 0
100-41940-306 BLDG/GRDS: DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 0 300 #DIV/0! 300 Consumption permit (gambling and alcohol)
100-41940-310 BLDG/GRDS: OTHER PROF SVCS 430 432 6,508 4,328 8,400 52% 8,400 8,400 0% 0
100-41940-321 BLDG/GRDS: TELEPHONE 5,020 4,851 5,851 2,698 5,500 49% 5,500 5,500 0% 0
100-41940-325 BLDG/GRDS: REAL ESTATE TAXES 6,988 6,723 6,439 258 7,000 4% 7,000 7,000 0% 0 Currently only sales & use tax being booked
100-41940-381 BLDG/GRDS: ELECTRIC UTILITY 6,196 6,964 10,328 4,240 9,000 47% 9,000 9,000 0% 0
100-41940-383 BLDG/GRDS: GAS UTILITY 4,252 3,382 4,799 3,301 5,000 66% 5,000 5,000 0% 0
100-41940-384 BLDG/GRDS: REFUSE/GARBAGE DISP 1,871 1,862 5,313 3,851 2,000 193% 2,000 2,400 20% 400 Approx. $200/month
100-41940-415 BLDG/GRDS: OTHER EQUIP RENTAL 0 499 0 0 500 0% 500 500 0% 0
100-41940-520 BLDG/GRDS: BLDGS & STRUCTURES 0 0 637 3,602 5,000 72% 5,000 5,000 0% 0



100-41940-560 BLDG/GRDS: FURNITURE & FIXTURES 1,634 0 3,149 485 2,500 19% 2,500 2,500 0% 0
100-41940-580 BLDG/GRDS: OTHER EQUIPMENT 0 160 352 300 1,000 30% 1,000 1,000 0% 0

Total Bldg 97,440 97,170 106,016 18,724 60,900 31% 60,900 61,600 1% 700
100-41950-303 ENG: ENGINEERING FEE 13,193 14,114 22,511 8,029 25,000 32% 25,000 25,000 0% 0

Total Bldg 13,193 14,114 22,511 8,029 25,000 32% 25,000 25,000 0% 0
100-41960-150 INSUR: WORKERS COMP PREM 1,893 1,730 2,086 1,174 2,500 47% 2,500 0 -100% (2,500) Is in Public Works Budget
100-41960-152 INSUR: WORKERS COMP BENE 0 0 0 2,661 0 #DIV/0! 0 0 #DIV/0! 0
100-41960-361 INSUR: GENERAL LIABILITY INS 23,061 22,340 21,946 55,756 35,000 159% 35,000 22,000 -37% (13,000) Yearly subscription comes due mid year and should be prorated

Total Insur 24,954 24,070 24,032 59,591 37,500 159% 37,500 22,000 -41% (15,500)
100-41970-341 LEGAL PUB: EMPLOYMENT 0 636 231 235 250 94% 250 250 0% 0
100-41970-343 LEGAL PUB: OTHER ADVERTISING 0 0 0 0 250 0% 250 250 0% 0
100-41970-351 LEGAL PUB: LEGAL NOTICES 1,642 985 1,925 1,192 2,000 60% 2,000 2,000 0% 0
100-41970-354 LEGAL PUB: RECORDING FEES 0 654 128 441 300 147% 500 500 0% 0

Total Legal Pub 1,642 2,274 2,284 1,868 2,800 67% 3,000 3,000 0% 0
100-48205-810 DAMAGE DEPOSIT: REFUNDS/REIMB 5,200 6,205 7,720 3,900 5,000 78% 5,000 5,000 0% 0

Total Damage Deposit 5,200 6,205 7,720 3,900 5,000 78% 5,000 5,000 0% 0
Total General Gov't 500,081.58 513,634.00 524,576.71 281,445.37 493,696.38 57% 485,815.05 501,358.31 3% 15,543

Public Safety
100-42101-310 HC SHERIFF: OTHER PROF SVCS 63,443 64,977 65,503 41,341 67,974 61% 69,335 69,335 0% 0

Total HC Sheriff 63,443 64,977 65,503 41,341 67,974 61% 69,335 69,335 0% 0
100-42102-310 WC SHERIFF: OTHER PROF SVCS 86,140 87,474 88,330 45,625 91,250 50% 94,170 94,170 0% 0

Total WC Sheriff 86,140 87,474 88,330 45,625 91,250 50% 94,170 94,170 0% 0
100-42210-103 FIRE: PART-TIME WAGES 20,068 18,420 29,404 0 34,340 0% 34,340 34,340 0% 0
100-42210-122 FIRE: FICA 1,244 1,142 1,823 0 2,129 0% 2,129 2,129 0% 0
100-42210-123 FIRE: MEDICARE 291 267 426 0 515 0% 515 515 0% 0
100-42210-142 FIRE: UNEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 0 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0! 0 0 #DIV/0! 0
100-42210-150 FIRE: WORKERS COMP 5,556 6,731 7,042 16,062 10,000 161% 10,000 7,200 -28% (2,800) Adjusted to better reflect actuals
100-42210-200 FIRE: OFFICE SUPPLIES 301 0 359 167 200 83% 200 200 0% 0
100-42210-305 FIRE: MEDICAL/PHYSICAL FEE 1,917 363 3,975 830 4,000 21% 4,000 4,000 0% 0
100-42210-306 FIRE: DUES/SUBSCRIPTIONS 2,961 1,042 884 562 950 59% 950 950 0% 0
100-42210-361 FIRE: GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE 6,747 10,108 6,875 13,968 0 #DIV/0! 0 5,700 #DIV/0! 5,700 Yearly subscription comes due mid year and should be prorated
100-42210-437 FIRE: OTHER MISCELLANEOUS 0 0 0 551 10,000 6% 10,000 10,000 0% 0
100-42210-700 FIRE: TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 0 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0! 0 0 #DIV/0! 0

Total Fire 39,086 38,073 50,788 32,140 62,134 52% 62,134 65,034 5% 2,900
100-42220-221 FIRE EQUIP: EQUIPMENT PARTS 5,424 7,812 3,665 5,485 5,500 100% 5,500 5,500 0% 0
100-42220-228 FIRE EQUIP: MEDICAL SUPPLIES 0 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0! 1,500 1,500 0% 0
100-42220-240 FIRE EQUIP: SMALL TOOLS/EQUIPMENT 765 581 718 0 850 0% 850 850 0% 0
100-42220-260 FIRE EQUIP: UNIFORMS 11,315 7,551 8,599 530 4,500 12% 4,500 4,500 0% 0
100-42220-580 FIRE EQUIP: OTHER EQUIPMENT 5,942 4,959 4,315 511 5,000 10% 5,000 5,000 0% 0

Total Fire Equip 23,446 20,903 17,296 6,527 15,850 41% 17,350 17,350 0% 0
100-42240-208 FIRE TRG: TRAINING/INSTRUCTION 5,400 3,558 3,401 1,520 7,500 20% 7,500 7,500 0% 0
100-42240-331 FIRE TRG: TRAVEL EXPENSES 1,101 1,468 1,099 576 1,500 38% 1,500 1,500 0% 0

Total Fire TRG 6,501 5,025 4,500 2,096 9,000 23% 9,000 9,000 0% 0
100-42260-212 FIRE VEH: MOTOR FUELS 4,365 4,243 5,428 1,088 5,000 22% 5,000 5,000 0% 0
100-42260-220 FIRE VEH: REPAIRS/MAINT SUPPLIES 3,071 4,985 7,438 2,388 9,000 27% 9,000 9,000 0% 0
100-42260-240 FIRE VEH: SMALL TOOLS/EQUIPMENT 386 1,845 2,335 0 2,000 0% 2,000 2,000 0% 0
100-42260-323 FIRE VEH: RADIO UNITS 2,025 2,250 1,107 2,541 7,465 34% 7,465 7,465 0% 0

Total Fire Veh 9,847 13,324 16,307 6,017 23,465 26% 23,465 23,465 0% 0
100-42280-215 FIRE BLDG: SHOP SUPPLIES 402 1,220 1,121 216 1,650 13% 1,650 1,650 0% 0
100-42280-220 FIRE BLDG: REPAIRS/MAINT SUPPLIES 3,163 4,958 0 522 3,500 15% 3,500 3,500 0% 0
100-42280-321 FIRE BLDG: TELEPHONE 490 458 1,002 288 800 36% 800 800 0% 0



100-42280-325 FIRE BLDG: REAL ESTATE TAXES 172 165 138 0 175 0% 175 175 0% 0
100-42280-381 FIRE BLDG: ELECTRIC UTILITIES 5,207 4,450 4,696 2,434 5,000 49% 5,000 5,000 0% 0
100-42280-383 FIRE BLDG: GAS UTILITIES 2,298 1,483 2,569 1,951 2,600 75% 2,600 2,600 0% 0

Total Fire Bldg 11,732 12,733 9,526 5,410 13,725 39% 13,725 13,725 0% 0
100-42290-124 FRA: PENSIONS 27,922 27,621 41,704 0 29,500 0% 29,500 31,000 5% 1,500 check past amounts for state aid and add $4500
100-42290-301 FRA: AUDITING & ACCTG FEES 4,475 0 10,683 0 5,000 0% 6,000 6,500 8% 500 Actual costs

Total FRA 32,397 27,621 52,387 0 34,500 0% 35,500 37,500 6% 2,000
100-42401-310 BLDG INSP: OTHER PROF SVCS 17,719 17,271 72,360 8,140 20,000 41% 25,000 50,600 102% 25,600 Offset by Revenue

Total Bldg Insp 17,719 17,271 72,360 8,140 20,000 41% 25,000 50,600 102% 25,600
100-42700-310 ANIMAL CTRL: OTHER PROF SVCS 688 0 189 180 850 21% 500 500 0% 0

Total Animal Ctrl 688 0 189 180 850 21% 500 500 0% 0
100-42800-310 CEMETERY: CONTRACTED SERVICES 0 0 0 100 150 67% 150 150 0% 0

Total Cemetery 0 0 0 100 150 67% 150 150 0% 0
Total Public Safety 290,998 287,401 377,186 147,575 338,898 44% 350,330 380,830 9% 30,500

Public Works

100-43000-101 PUBLIC WORKS: FULL-TIME WAGES 43,250 45,643 61,257 30,955 84,678 37% 92,700 98,000 6% 5,300 Scott & Jason, wage increase April-Dec
100-43000-103 PUBLIC WORKS: PART-TIME WAGES 2,551 8,615 4,010 12,195 5,000 244% 1,500 4,000 167% 2,500 Luke - part time mid June - Mid Aug
100-43000-121 PUBLIC WORKS: PERA 3,133 3,498 3,462 2,422 5,250 46% 7,000 7,400 6% 400
100-43000-122 PUBLIC WORKS: FICA 2,679 3,274 3,846 2,925 5,250 56% 5,700 6,300 11% 600
100-43000-123 PUBLIC WORKS: MEDICARE 945 765 899 684 1,270 54% 1,300 1,500 15% 200
100-43000-132 PUBLIC WORKS: EMPLOYER PAID HSA. 2,717 #DIV/0! 2,717 Was all in Health Ins. Prem budget in past
100-43000-134 PUBLIC WORKS: EMPLOYER PAID LIFE 1,532 #DIV/0! 1,532 Was all in Health Ins. Prem budget in past
100-43000-142 PUBLIC WORKS: UNEMPLOYMENT BENE 0 0 0 41 0 #DIV/0! 0 300 #DIV/0! 300
100-43000-150 PUBLIC WORKS: WORKERS COMP PREM 3,316 3,084 2,985 8,849 4,500 197% 9,000 7,500 -17% (1,500) Adjusted to better reflect actuals
100-43000-151 PUBLIC WORKS: HEALTH INS PREM 5,615 5,378 5,537 5,622 5,000 112% 19,328 14,664 -24% (4,664) Split out to detailed areas of Health ins
100-43000-152 PUBLIC WORKS: WORKERS COMP BENE 0 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0! 0 0 #DIV/0! 0
100-43000-208 PW: TRAINING & INSTRUCTION 95 1,140 0 0 1,100 0% 1,500 1,500 0% 0
100-43000-321 PW: TELEPHONE 2,000 #DIV/0! 2,000 Cell phones for PW

Total Public Works 61,584 71,397 81,997 63,694 112,048 57% 138,028 147,414 7% 9,386
100-43100-212 PUBLIC WORKS: MOTOR FUELS 8,257 9,113 10,110 5,912 9,828 60% 10,000 10,000 0% 0

100-43100-215 PUBLIC WORKS: SHOP SUPPLIES 1,980 929 4,608 2,580 2,500 103% 5,000 5,000 0% 0
100-43100-220 PUBLIC WORKS: REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLY 4,347 5,806 7,116 3,239 7,500 43% 7,500 7,500 0% 0

100-43100-240 PUBLIC WORKS: SMALL TOOLS/EQUIP 1,374 2,022 1,986 3,222 2,700 119% 4,000 4,000 0% 0

100-43100-260 PUBLIC WORKS: UNIFORMS 552 830 907 725 1,800 40% 2,000 2,000 0% 0

100-43100-310 PUBLIC WORKS: OTHER PROF SVCS 5,000 7,775 6,708 2,729 6,090 45% 3,000 3,000 0% 0
100-43100-325 PUBLIC WORKS: TAXES 0 0 0 119 0 #DIV/0! 200 200 0% 0

Total Public Works 21,510 26,474 31,435 18,526 30,418 61% 31,700 31,700 0% 0
100-43121-224 PAVED STRS: STREET MAINT MTLS 283 811 5,636 11,838 10,000 118% 16,000 16,000 0% 0
100-43121-226 PAVED STRS: SIGN REPAIR MTLS 6,136 6,643 589 444 7,000 6% 7,000 7,000 0% 0

Total Paved Streets 6,419 7,454 6,225 12,282 17,000 72% 23,000 23,000 0% 0
100-43122-224 UNPAVED STRS: STREET MAINT MTLS 2,909 2,655 2,240 2,809 12,500 22% 12,500 12,500 0% 0
100-43122-226 UNPAVED STR: SIGN REPAIR MTLS 10,175 2,312 4,160 0 6,500 0% 500 500 0% 0

Total Unpaved Streets 13,083 4,967 6,400 2,809 19,000 15% 13,000 13,000 0% 0
100-43125-224 SNOW/ICE: STREET MAINT MTLS 12,786 2,246 600 11,926 15,000 80% 15,000 15,000 0% 0

Total Snow/Ice 12,786 2,246 600 11,926 15,000 80% 15,000 15,000 0% 0



100-43160-381 STR LTG: ELECTRICITY 29,063 26,483 27,036 14,067 30,000 47% 30,000 27,000 -10% (3,000) Avg $2000/month for lighting and $200/month for repairs/new bulbs
Total Street Lights 29,063 26,483 27,036 14,067 30,000 47% 30,000 27,000 -10% (3,000)

100-43240-384 CITY CLEAN UP: REFUSE 0 487 828 887 1,000 89% 1,000 2,000 100% 1,000 Dumpster costs went up in 2015
Total City Clean Up 0 487 828 887 1,000 89% 1,000 2,000 100% 1,000

100-43245-384 RECYCLING: REFUSE DISPOSAL 14,540 18,637 25,354 13,028 28,000 47% 28,000 35,000 25% 7,000 2014 actuals were $33k
Total Recycling 14,540 18,637 25,354 13,028 28,000 47% 28,000 35,000 25% 7,000

100-43260-310 WEED CTRL: OTHER PROF SVCS 374 1,087 818 0 1,000 0% 0 0 #DIV/0! 0
Total Weed Control 374 1,087 818 0 1,000 0% 0 0 #DIV/0! 0
Total Public Works 159,359 159,232 180,693 137,218 253,466 54% 279,728 294,114 5% 14,386

Culture & Recreation
100-45186-437 SENIOR CENTER CONTRIBUTION 1,250 625 1,250 3,827 7,250 53% 7,250 7,250 0% 0

Total Senior Center Contribution 1,250 625 1,250 3,827 7,250 53% 7,250 7,250 0% 0
100-45200-208 PARKS: MOWING SERVICES CONTRACT 5,266 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0! 0 0 #DIV/0! 0
100-45200-220 PARKS: REPAIRS/MAINT SUPPLIES 2,031 6,508 3,801 1,892 7,500 25% 5,000 5,000 0% 0

100-45200-225 PARKS: LANDSCAPING MATLS 1,572 2,352 4,055 1,158 3,300 35% 3,300 3,300 0% 0
100-45200-381 PARKS: ELECTRIC UTILITIES 817 825 2,729 634 1,015 62% 1,100 1,100 0% 0

100-45200-400 PARKS: MAINTENANCE CONTRACT 3,579 2,704 4,489 1,125 5,000 23% 6,000 6,000 0% 0
100-45200-440 PARKS: PROGRAMS/FYCC 2,676 2,957 5,171 2,388 5,400 44% 5,300 5,300 0% 0
100-45200-441 PARKS: COMMUNITY GARDEN 4,516 3,467 2,772 0 4,500 0% 4,500 4,500 0% 0

100-45200-580 PARKS: OTHER EQUIPMENT 6,696 2,484 1,182 926 2,500 37% 2,500 7,000 180% 4,500 Adjust to reflect Biff's cleaning invoices
Total Parks 27,153 21,298 24,199 8,124 29,215 28% 27,700 32,200 16% 4,500

100-45500-437 ROY SIMMS LIBRARY: CONTRIB 7,000 7,000 7,000 3,500 7,000 50% 7,000 7,000 0% 0
Total Roy Simms Library 7,000 7,000 7,000 3,500 7,000 50% 7,000 7,000 0% 0

Total Culture & Rec 35,403 28,923 32,449 15,451 43,465 36% 41,950 46,450 11% 4,500

Transfers Out
100-49360-700 TRANSFER OUT: GENERAL CAPITAL 336,140 145,203 221,307 0 100,000 0% 0 0 #DIV/0! 0
100-49360-700 TRANSFER OUT: PARKS CAPITAL 0 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0! 0 0 #DIV/0! 0
100-49360-700 TRANSFER OUT: FIRE DEPT CAPITAL 4,694 0 0 0 20,000 0% 24,000 24,000 0% 0
100-49360-700 TRANSFER OUT: HISTORICAL FUND 10,000 10,000 10,000 0 10,000 0% 10,000 0 -100% (10,000) Rehabilitation Project planned for 2015
100-49360-700 TRANSFER OUT: CITY HALL FUND 30,000 100,000 30,000 0 30,000 0% 0 0 #DIV/0! 0
100-49360-700 TRANSFER OUT: EQUIPMENT FUND 32,500 20,000 32,500 0 32,500 0% 65,000 55,000 -15% (10,000)
100-49360-700 TRANSFER OUT: STREET CAPITAL 53,000 100,000 275,000 0 100,000 0% 200,000 185,000 -8% (15,000)

Total Transfers Out 466,334 375,203 568,807 0 292,500 0% 299,000 264,000 -12% (35,000)

Total Fund Expend. 1,452,175 1,364,393 1,683,711 581,690 1,422,025 41% 1,456,823 1,486,752 2% 29,929

Total Revenue Over Expenditures (79,838) 42,068 (70,692) (22,458) 3,807 (53,813) (53,742) 0% 71



Burschville Construction, Inc
11440 8th Street NE

PO Box 65
Hanover, MN 55341
Telephone 763-497-4242

Fax 763-497-4266
E-mail: estimatins&bursch villeconstruction. com

July 16,2015

City of Hanover
Attn: Scott Vogel
11250 5th Street NE
Hanover, MN 55341

Proposal for
Overlook Circle Ditch Cleaning, Hanover, MN

Burschville Construction, Inc. hereby proposes to provide all labor and equipment
necessary to:

Clean the road ditches at 518 & 528 Overlook Circle, Hanover, MN

Labor & Equipment $ 1,000.00



West Mississippi River Regional Trail Master Plan

Project Process
The master planning process 
began in February 2015 and 
is expected to be complete in 
Spring of 2016. 

Project kick-off: 
February

Explore Alternatives + 
Community Outreach 
(online, in focus groups,           
and at events)
July - October

Draft Master Plan:
October- December

Final Master Plan and 
Approvals + Community 
Outreach (online, in focus 
groups, and at events) 

December- March

Opportunities for 
Community Input
Visit 
www.ThreeRiversTrails.com  
for updates and opportunities 
to provide input as the 
project progresses.

The project is a collaborative 
effort between Three Rivers 
Park District and Hoisington 
Koegler Group, Inc.

Three Rivers Park District Map

or email us at 
MissRT@
threerivers
parkdistrict.org

Three Rivers Park District is developing a Master Plan 
for the Crow River Regional Trail 
A tributary of the Mississippi River, the Crow River drains approximately 2,756 square miles of agriculture, hardwood forest 
patches and prairie. The Crow River north and south forks converge at Rockford and flow northeast to the Mississippi River 
confluence at Dayton. The river’s course is used to define the boundary between Wright and Hennepin Counties. 

Stretching nearly 20 miles along the northwestern boundary of Hennepin County, the vision of the Crow River Regional 
Trail is to provide multiple opportunities to experience the Crow River corridor. Following the river’s course, the proposed 
Crow River Regional Trail will have the opportunity to connect Rockford, Greenfield, Hanover, Rogers, Dayton, and Wright 
County to regional recreational amenities such as; 1) Luce Line State Trail, 2) Lake Independence Regional Trail, 3) the 
future West Mississippi River Regional Trail, 4) Lake Rebecca Park Reserve, 5) Crow Hassan Park Reserve and to the larger 
Twin Cities network of parks and trails.  In addition, the proposed Crow River Regional Trail will connect to local park 
facilities, downtowns, and commercial nodes and provide various opportunities for trail users to ‘touch the river.’

Crow River Regional Trail 
Study Area

or email us at 
CrowRT@
threerivers
parkdistrict.org

Crow River Regional Trail Master Plan



Crow River  
Regional Trail 

Master Plan 
Project Introduction 



Project Purpose 
• Complete Master Plan for the Crow River Regional Trail  
• Looking for opportunities for people to interact with the river 
• Master Plan will address 

– Development Concept - trail alignment, connections to destinations, 
trailheads, wayfindng 

– Boundaries 
– Natural resources and quality 
– Operations and Maintenance 
– Costs 

• Meet Met Council 2040 Parks Policy Plan and Greater Minnesota 
Regional Parks and Trails Commission requirements for regional 
trail master plans 

• Three Rivers Park District will seek funding for implementation 
after master plan is adopted 

 
 



• Approx. 20 miles 
• Lake Rebecca Regional 

Park to Confluence of 
Mississippi River 

• Greenfield, Hannover, 
Rogers, Dayton, and 
Rockford 

• Connections to Lake 
Rebecca, Crow Hassan 
and Elm Creek Park 
Reserves 

• Connections to Luce 
Line State Trail, Lake 
Independence, West 
Mississippi River, and 
the extension of the 
Rush Creek Regional 
Trails 



Project Schedule 
• Organize Effort: February – June 2015 
• Understand What Exists: June – July  
• Explore Alternatives: July – October  

– Community Outreach (online, focus groups, events) 
• Draft Master Plans: October - December 
• Final Master Plans and Approvals: December – March 2016 

– Community Outreach (online, focus groups, events) 


	ADP299.tmp
	To:  Mayor Kauffman & Members of the Hanover City Council
	From:  Brian Hagen, City Administrator
	Date:  July 17, 2015
	Re:  Review of July 21, 2015 City Council Agenda

	07-21-15 claims.pdf
	07-17-15 Payroll.pdf
	07-17-15 Paid Register
	07-17-15 Ded Ben
	07-17-15 PERA
	07-17-15 Paid Register Council
	07-17-15 Ded Ben Council


	2015 Budget Amendment #1 - DRAFT 1.pdf
	GF Rev - 100
	GF Exp - 100

	ADPAF41.tmp
	To:  Mayor Kauffman & Members of the Hanover City Council
	From:  Brian Hagen, City Administrator
	Date:  July 17, 2015
	Re:  Review of July 21, 2015 City Council Agenda




